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Independent auditor’s report 
To The Shareholders of Lesha Bank L.L.C (Public)  
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Lesha Bank L.L.C. (Public) (the ‘Bank’) and its 
subsidiaries (together the ‘Group’), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 
December 2025, the consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, income and attribution 
related to quasi-equity, changes in equity, cash flows and changes in off-balance sheet assets under 
management for the year then ended, and notes, comprising significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information. 

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, 
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2025 and its consolidated financial 
performance, and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Financial Accounting 
Standards (FAS) issued by the Accounting and Auditing Organisation for Islamic Financial Institutions (AAOIFI) 
as modified by the Qatar Financial Centre Regulatory Authority (QFCRA). 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities 
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated 
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the 
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ International Code of Ethics for Professional 
Accountants (including International Independence Standards) (IESBA Code), as applicable to audits of the 
financial statements of public interest entities, together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to 
our audit of the consolidated financial statements in the State of Qatar, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

KPMG LLC of PO Box 4473, Zone 25, C Ring Road, Street No. 230, Building 246, Doha is a limited liability company registered with the Qatar Financial Centre  
Authority (QFCA), State of Qatar as number 00051 and a member firm of the KPMG global organization of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG  
International Limited, a private English company limited by guarantee. The KPMG name and logo are registered trademarks of KPMG International  

KPMG L.L.C. 
(QFC No 00051)   
Zone 25 C Ring Road   
Street 230, Building 246 
P.O Box 4473, Doha
State of Qatar
Telephone: +974 4457 6444
Fax: +974 4436 7411
Website: kpmg.com/qa 
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Independent auditor’s report (continued) 
Lesha Bank L.L.C (Public) 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit 
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context 
of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we 
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Impairment of financing assets 
See notes 4, 7 and 25.6.5 to the consolidated financial statements 
The key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit 
We focused on this area because: 

• At 31 December 2025, the Group's gross
financing assets amounted to QAR 590
million (2024: QAR 522 million) and the
total provision for impairment on the
financing assets amounted to QAR 380
million (2024: QAR 347 million).

• impairment of financing assets involves:

 complex estimates and judgement over 
both timing and recognition of impairment 
including susceptibility to management 
bias. 

 use of statistical models and methodologies 
for determination of expected credit losses 
(“ECL”). The Group exercises significant 
judgments and makes a number of 
assumptions in developing its ECL models 
which is determined as a function of the 
assessment of the probability of default 
(“PD”), loss given default (“LGD”), and 
exposure at default (“EAD”) associated with 
the underlying financial assets; and  

 complex disclosure requirements regarding 
credit quality of the portfolio including 
explanation of key judgments and material 
inputs used in determination of expected 
credit losses.  

• the need to measure ECLs on an unbiased
forward-looking basis incorporating a range 
of economic conditions. Significant
management judgment is applied in
determining the economic scenarios used
and the probability weighting applied to
them; and adjustments to the ECL model
results are made by management to
address known impairment model
limitations or emerging trends or risks.

Our audit procedures, to address the significant risk 
associated with impairment of financing assets, 
amongst others, included: 

• evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting
policies adopted based on the requirements of FAS
30, our business understanding, and industry
practice; and

• confirming our understanding of management’s
processes, systems and controls implemented,
including controls over expected credit loss (“ECL”)
model development.

Controls testing 

We performed process walkthroughs to identify the 
key systems, applications and controls used in the ECL 
processes. We tested the relevant manual controls 
associated with the ECL process. Key aspects of our 
control testing involved the following:  

• testing the controls over the inputs and
assumptions used to derive the credit ratings for the 
borrowers, including performing and non-
performing loans and its monitoring process;

• testing the design and operating effectiveness of
the key controls over the completeness and
accuracy of the key inputs and assumption elements 
into the ECL model;

• testing controls over the modelling process,
including governance over model monitoring,
validation and approval;

• testing key controls relating to selection and
implementation of material economic variables;
and

• testing controls over the governance and
assessment of model outputs and authorisation and 
review of post model adjustments and management 
overlays including selection of economic scenarios
and the probability weights applied to them.
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Independent auditor’s report (continued) 
Lesha Bank L.L.C (Public) 

Impairment of financing assets 
See notes 4, 7 and 25.6.5 to the consolidated financial statements 
The key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit 

Tests of details  

Key aspects of our testing involved: 

• sample testing over key inputs and assumptions
impacting ECL calculations including economic
forecasts to confirm the accuracy of information
used;

• re-performing key aspects of the Group’s
significant increase in credit risk (“SICR”)
determinations and selecting samples of financing 
assets to determine whether a SICR was
appropriately identified;

• re-performing key elements of the Group’s model
calculations and assessing performance results for 
accuracy; and

• selecting a sample of post model adjustments and 
management overlays in order to assess the
reasonableness of the adjustments by challenging
key assumptions, testing the underlying
calculation and testing any relevant inputs being
used.

Use of specialists 

For the relevant portfolios examined, we have involved 
KPMG credit risk specialists to assist us in challenging 
key management assumptions used in determining 
expected credit losses. Key aspects included:  

• evaluating the appropriateness of the Groups’ ECL 
methodologies (including the staging criteria
used);

• re-performing the calculations of certain
components of the ECL model (including the
staging criteria);

• re-performing the calculations of certain
components of the ECL model (including the
staging criteria);

• evaluating the appropriateness of the Group’s
methodology for determining the economic
scenarios used and the probability weighting
applied to them; and

• evaluating the overall reasonableness of the
management economic forecast by comparing it
to external market data and our understanding of
the underlying sector and macroeconomic trends. 
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Independent auditor’s report (continued) 
Lesha Bank L.L.C (Public) 

Impairment of financing assets 
See notes 4, 7 and 25.6.5 to the consolidated financial statements 
The key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit 

Disclosures 

Evaluating the adequacy of the Group’s disclosure in 
relation to use of significant estimates and judgment 
and credit quality of financing assets by reference to the 
requirements of the relevant accounting standards. 

Valuation of unquoted investment securities carried at fair value 
See notes 4, 5 (b) (ii), 8 and 27 to the consolidated financial statements 
The key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit 
We focused on this area because: 

• At 31 December 2025, the Group’s carrying 
value of unquoted investments securities
carried at fair value amounted to QAR
1,684 million (2024: QAR 987 million).

• Due to the inherently judgmental nature of 
the computation of the fair value of
unquoted investment securities, there is a
risk that the fair value and any related gain
or loss recorded in the consolidated
financial statements may be misstated.

• The key areas of judgment include:

 The valuation method and discount
rates applied in terms of determining 
the fair value of these assets 

 Assumptions used in the fair value 
calculation such as prospective 
financial information, expected future 
cash flows, expected market 
conditions, etc. 

 The current geopolitical situation and 
macroeconomic uncertainties 

Due to the subjectivity and estimation 
uncertainty in determining their fair values of 
the unquoted investment securities, this is 
considered a key audit matter. 

Our audit approach to address the significant risk 
associated with valuation of unquoted investment 
securities carried at fair value, included testing the 
controls associated with the relevant processes for 
valuation of investments and performing substantive 
procedures on such estimates. We involved our internal 
specialists where their specific expertise was required. 
Our key audit procedures were as follows: 

Control testing 

• Evaluating the design and tested the operating
effectiveness of controls over the valuation
process, including management’s review of
valuation methodologies, approval of key
assumptions, and oversight of external valuation
inputs.

Tests of details 

We performed substantive procedures on selected 
investments, including: 

• Evaluating the competence and capabilities of the
external valuation experts appointed by the
management.

• Assessing the appropriateness of valuation
techniques applied.

• Testing key inputs such growth projections against
external benchmarks.

• Reviewing recent transaction prices to determine
whether they reflect current market conditions.

Use of Specialists 

For the relevant portfolios examined, we have involved 
KPMG valuation specialists to assist us in challenging key 
management assumptions used in determining fair 
value. Key aspects included:  
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Independent auditor’s report (continued) 
Lesha Bank L.L.C (Public) 

Valuation of unquoted investment securities carried at fair value 
See notes 4, 5 (b) (ii), 8 and 27 to the consolidated financial statements 
The key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit 

• independently assessing the methodologies and
assumptions used by management, including the
reasonableness of discount rates, liquidity
adjustments, and comparable multiples.

Disclosures 

We assessed the adequacy of the Group’s disclosures in 
the consolidated financial statements including the 
disclosures of key assumptions, judgements and 
sensitivities, by reference to the requirements of the 
relevant accounting standards. 

Other Matter 

The consolidated financial statements of the Group as at and for the year ended 31 December 2024 were 
audited by another auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on those consolidated financial 
statements on 26 January 2025. 

Other Information 

The Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the 
information included in the Bank’s Annual Report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements 
and our auditor’s report thereon. The Annual report is expected to be made available to us after the date of 
this auditor’s report. 

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
and will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon as part of our engagement to audit the 
consolidated financial statements. We have performed assurance engagements on the internal controls over 
financial reporting and the Bank’s compliance with the provisions of the Qatar Financial Markets Authority’s 
Governance Code for Listed Companies, that forms part of the other information, and we will provide 
separate assurance practitioner’s conclusions thereon that will be included within the other information. 

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially 
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise 
appears to be materially misstated.  

Responsibilities of Board of Directors for the Consolidated Financial Statements 

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial 
statements in accordance with FAS as modified by QFCRA, and for such internal control as the Board of 
Directors determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  
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Independent auditor’s report (continued) 
Lesha Bank L.L.C (Public) 

Responsibilities of Board of Directors for the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the 
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and 
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Group 
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 
consolidated financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional 
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:  

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a 
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal control.  

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Directors. 

  Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we 
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to 
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to 
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a 
going concern. 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business units within the Group as a basis for forming an opinion on the 
group financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and review of the audit 
work performed for purposes of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.  

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of 
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify 
during our audit. 
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Independent auditor’s report (continued) 
Lesha Bank L.L.C (Public) 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 

We also provide the Board of Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that 
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate 
threats or safeguards applied.  

From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors, we determine those matters that were of most 
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the 
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public 
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not 
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected 
to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

As required by QFC Companies Regulations 2005, we also report that: 

1. We have obtained all the information and explanations we considered necessary for the purposes of our
audit.

2. The Bank has maintained proper accounting records and its consolidated financial statements are in
agreement therewith.

28 January 2026 Gopal Balasubramaniam 
Doha KPMG L.L.C. 
State of Qatar Qatar Auditor’s Registry Number 251 

Licensed by QFMA: External 
Auditor’s License No. 120153 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME 

For the year ended 31 December 2025 (expressed in QAR’000) 
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31 December 31 December

Notes 2025 2024
INCOME

Income from financing assets 11,650               6,533                

Income from placements with financial institutions 146,940            190,029            

Profit on sukuk investments 130,657             109,254            

Finance expenses (119,703)            (123,481)           

Net income from financing and investing assets 169,544             182,335             

Fee income 18 124,017              60,694              

Dividend income 22,144               24,382              

Gain on re-measurement of investments at  fair value through income statement 8 18,655               186                   

Fair value loss on re-measurement of investments in real estate -                        (6,396)               

(Loss) / gain on disposal of sukuk investments (278)                   569                   

Gain on disposal of equity investments 8.1 70,933               84,567              

Gain on disposal of real estate investments -                        912                    

Net foreign exchange gain 17,590               5,567                 

Other income, net 19 44,016              31,822               

 TOTAL INCOME 466,621             384,638            

EXPENSES

Staff costs (95,538)             (75,553)             

Depreciation and amortisation 10 & 11 (6,728)                (7,154)               

Other operating expenses 20 (51,454)             (51,321)              

TOTAL EXPENSES (153,720)            (134,028)           

Reversal / (provision) for impairment on financing assets, net of recoveries 25 770                    (8,253)               

 (Provision) / reversal for impairment on other financial assets 25 (1,425)                2,135                 

 Provision for impairment on investments in real estate (11,012)               -                        

 Other provisions -                        (11,100)              

PROFIT BEFORE TAX AND ATTRIBUTION   TO QUASI-EQUITY 301,234             233,392            

Less: Net profit attributable to quasi-equity (101,132)             (114,025)           

PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 200,102             119,367              

Income tax expense (33)                    -                        

NET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 200,069            119,367              

Attributable to:

Equity holders of the Bank 200,111              128,165             

Non-controlling interest (42)                    (8,798)               

200,069            119,367              

Basic/diluted profit per share – QAR 21 0.179                 0.114                 

 For the year ended 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

For the year ended 31 December 2025 (expressed in QAR’000) 
 

The attached notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
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31 December 31 December

2025 2024

NET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 200,069             119,367              

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

 Items that may not be subsequently classified to consolidated 

  income statement 

 Fair value changes of equity-type investments carried at fair value 

  through other comprehensive income 2,480                 (2,235)               

 Items that may be subsequently classified to consolidated 

  income statement 

 Fair value changes of debt-type investments classified as fair value 

  through other comprehensive income 35,991                (3,018)               

 Fair value changes of investment in real estate reclassified to 

  consolidated Income statement -                         (13,894)             

 Total other comprehensive income for the year 38,471                (19,147)              

 TOTAL COMREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 238,540             100,220            

Attributable to:

Equity holders of the Bank 238,582              109,018             

Non-controlling interest (42)                     (8,798)               

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 238,540             100,220            

 For the year ended 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME AND ATTRIBUTION RELATED TO QUASI-EQUITY 

For the year ended 31 December 2025 (expressed in QAR’000) 
 

The attached notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
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31 December 31 December

2025 2024

NET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR BEFORE ATTRIBUTION TO QUASI-EQUITY 301,234              233,392             

Less: Income not attributable to quasi-equity (117,399)             (87,895)             

 Add: Expenses not attributable to quasi-equity -                         -                        

 Net profit attributable to quasi-equity holders before Bank's

 Mudaraba Income 183,835              145,497             

Less: Mudarib's share (156,260)             (43,649)             

Add: Support provided by Bank 73,557                12,177                

NET PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO QUASI-EQUITY 101,132               114,025             

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

 Item that may be subsequently classified to consolidated

 statement of income 

Share in the reserve attributable to quasi-equity -                         -                         

 TOTAL OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR -                         -                        

 TOTAL PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO QUASI-EQUITY 101,132               114,025             

For the year ended
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY  

For the year ended 31 December 2025 (expressed in QAR’000) 
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 Share

capital 

 Share 

premium 

 Legal 

reserve 

 Fair value 

reserve 

 Retained 

earnings 

 Total equity 

attributable to 

equity holders 

of the Bank 

 Non-

controlling 

interests  Total equity

 Balance at 1 January 2025 1,120,000      80,003          22,256           (22,769)          142,735         1,342,225           (18,200)          1,324,025      

 Net profit for the year -                    -                    -                    -                    200,111          200,111              (42)                200,069        

 Other comprehensive income -                    -                    -                    38,471           -                    38,471               -                    38,471           

Total comprehensive income for the year -                    -                    -                    38,471           200,111          238,582             (42)                238,540        

 Transfer to retained earnings upon disposal of

 FVOCI equity instruments -                    -                    -                    (2,339)            2,795             456                   -                    456               

 Transfer to legal reserve -                    -                    20,011           -                    (20,011)          -                        -                    -                    

 Dividend for the year 2024 -                    -                    -                    -                    (56,000)         (56,000)             -                    (56,000)         

 Interim dividend for the year 2025 -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                        (42)                (42)                

 Social and Sport funds contribution -                    -                    -                    -                    (5,003)           (5,003)               -                    (5,003)           

Net change in non-controlling interests due to:

   - Real Estate Structures -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                        9,871             9,871             

Balance at 31 December 2025 1,120,000      80,003          42,267           13,363           264,627         1,520,260          (8,413)            1,511,847       

 Balance at 1 January 2024 1,120,000     80,003         9,439            (3,237)           30,206          1,236,411           (9,402)          1,227,009      

 Net profit for the year -                    -                    -                    -                    128,165         128,165             (8,798)          119,367         

 Other comprehensive income -                    -                    -                    (19,147)          -                    (19,147)              -                    (19,147)          

Total comprehensive income for the year -                    -                    -                    (19,147)          128,165         109,018            (8,798)          100,220        

 Transfer to retained earnings upon disposal of

 FVOCI equity instruments -                    -                    -                    (385)             385               -                        -                    -                    

 Transfer to legal reserve -                    -                    12,817           -                    (12,817)          -                        -                    -                    

 Fair value adjustments -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                        -                    -                    

 Social and Sport funds contribution -                    -                    -                    -                    (3,204)          (3,204)              -                    (3,204)          

1,120,000     80,003         22,256          (22,769)         142,735         1,342,225          (18,200)        1,324,025      Balance at 31 December 2024  



 
LESHA BANK L.L.C (PUBLIC) 
 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS  

For the year ended 31 December 2025 (expressed in QAR’000)  

 

The attached notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
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31 December 31 December

Notes 2025 2024

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net profit for the year 200,069           119,367             

Adjustments for non-cash items

Depreciation and amortisation 10 & 11 6,728                 7,154                 

Loss on disposal of Fixed assets -                         6                       

Loss / (gain) on disposal of real estate Investments -                         (912)                  

 Unrealised gain on re-measurement of investments at 

 fair value through income statement (18,655)              (186)                  

 Unrealised loss / (gain) on Sharia-compliant risk

 management instruments, net 2,139                 (9,124)               

 Unrealised loss on investments in real estate -                         6,396                

(Reversal) / provision for impairment on financing assets, net 25 (770)                   8,253                

Provision / (reversal) for impairment on other financial assets 25 1,425                 (2,135)               

Provision for impairment on investments in real estate 11,012                -                        

Other provisions -                         11,100                

201,948            139,919             

Changes in: 

Financing assets (33,989)             (95,244)            

Assets held-for-sale 98,176               (1,992)               

Other assets (404,856)          25,006              

Customers’ balances 106,453            57,000              

Liabilities held-for-sale -                         (98,497)            

Other liabilities (69,503)             9,940                

Net cash (used in) / from operating activities (101,771)              36,132               

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of fixed assets & intangible assets 10 & 11 (4,923)               (804)                 

Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets -                         110                    

Investments securities (1,081,762)          (617,764)           

Investment in real estate 117,026              -                        

Proceeds from disposal of real estate investments -                         265,128            

 Net change in cash and bank balances with maturity

  of more than 90 days (492,755)            (67,275)             

Net cash used in investing activities (1,462,414)         (420,605)          

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Net change in financing liabilities 734,614             577,349            

Net change in participatory investment accounts 307,592             (133,668)           

Net change in non-controlling interest 9,829                 -                        

Dividends paid to equity holders (56,000)            -                        

Net cash from financing activities 996,035            443,681            

Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (568,150)            59,208              

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 6 1,952,050          1,892,842         

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 6 1,383,900         1,952,050         

 For the year ended 
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 1  January 

2025 
Investments

 Revaluations

/ Gross Income 

 Dividends 

paid 

 Bank's Fee as 

an agent 

 At 31 December 

2025 

 Investments 

 Sukuk securities Portfolio 227,594         144,639            15,870                 (15,870)              -                        372,233                    

 Equity securities portfolio 8,376,839     5,169,727           (339,273)             (247,606)          (72,410)             12,887,277                

8,604,433    5,314,366         (323,403)            (263,476)           (72,410)             13,259,510                

 1  January 

2024 
 Investments 

 Revaluations

/ Gross Income 
 Dividends paid 

 Bank's Fee as 

an agent 

 At 31 December 

2024 

 Investments 

 Sukuk securities Portfolio 59,089         168,505            2,674                  (2,674)               -                        227,594                   

 Equity securities portfolio 6,129,826     2,320,515         110,854              (134,209)           (50,147)             8,376,839                

6,188,915      2,489,020        113,528               (136,883)           (50,147)             8,604,433                

Movements during the year

Movements during the year
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1. REPORTING ENTITY 

Lesha Bank L.L.C (Public) (“the Bank” or “the Parent” or “Lesha Bank”) is an Islamic bank, which was established in 

the State of Qatar as a limited liability company under license No.00091, dated 4 September 2008, from the Qatar 

Financial Centre Authority. The Bank is authorised to conduct the following regulated activities by the Qatar 

Financial Centre Regulatory Authority (the “QFCRA”): 

 

• Deposit taking; 

• Providing credit facilities; 

• Dealing in investments; 

• Arranging deals in investments; 

• Arranging credit facilities; 

• Providing custody services; 

• Arranging the provision of custody services; 

• Managing investments; 

• Advising on investments; and 

• Operating a collective investment fund. 

All the Bank’s activities are regulated by the QFCRA and are conducted in accordance with Islamic Shari’a 

principles, as determined by the Shari’a Supervisory Board of the Bank and in accordance with the provisions of 

its Articles of Association.  The Bank operates through its head office located on 4th Floor, Tornado Tower, West 

Bay, Doha, State of Qatar. The Bank’s issued shares are listed for trading on the Qatar Exchange effective from 27 

April 2016 (ticker: “QFBQ”). 

The consolidated financial statements of the Bank for the year ended 31 December 2025 comprise the Bank and 

its subsidiaries (together referred to as “the Group” and individually as “Group entities”). The Parent Company / 

Ultimate Controlling Party of the Group is Lesha Bank L.L.C (Public).  

The Bank had the following principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2025 and 31 December 2024: 

31 December 31 December Year of 

 Subsidiaries  Activity  2025  2024  incorporation  Country 

QFB Money Market Fund 1 Money market fund 100.0% 100.0% 2015 Cayman Islands

Lesha Capital Investments 100.0% -               2025 Saudi Arabia

LB Aviation Holdco Investments 100.0% -               2025 Qatar

Umm Slal four Accommodation   LLC Construction 70.0% 70.0% 2017 Qatar

3130 Fairview GEG, LLC* Owning and leasing real estate 98.0% 98.0% 2019 USA

Fairview Investor Corp.* Leasing real estate 98.0% 98.0% 2019 USA

QFB Investments I Ltd. Investments 100.0% 100.0% 2022 Cayman Islands

QFB Private Equity Ltd. Investments 100.0% 100.0% 2022 Cayman Islands

LB Income Fund Investments 100.0% 100.0% 2023 Cayman Islands

LB Education Investments 100.0% 100.0% 2023 Cayman Islands

QFB Hospitality Ltd. Investments 100.0% 100.0% 2022 Cayman Islands

Gateway LLC Investments 100.0% 100.0% 2020 Qatar

LB Real Estate Equity Fund 1 Investments 100.0% 100.0% 2022 Cayman Islands

Effective ownership as at

 
 
* These subsidiaries are related to investment products offered to customers refer to Note 12. 
**On 8th October 2024, the Bank acquired the entire share capital of a foreign bank, Bereke Bank JSC located in the republic of Kazakhstan. The 

Bank successfully completed the acquisition which was fully syndicated to an investor though a sharia compliant structure. 
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION 

Statement of Compliance  

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with Financial Accounting 

Standards (“FAS”) issued by the Accounting and Auditing Organisation for Islamic Financial Institutions (“AAOIFI”) 

as amended by applicable QFCRA rules (refer note 4.3). In line with the requirements of AAOIFI, for matters that 

are not covered by FAS, the Group uses the guidance from the relevant International Financial Reporting 

Standards (“IFRSs”) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”). 

 

Basis of measurement  

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for 

investment securities classified as Investments at fair value through equity, Investments at fair value through income 

statement, Shari’a-compliant-risk-management instruments and certain Investment in real estate are carried at fair 

value. 

 

Functional and presentational currency  

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Qatari Riyals (“QAR”), which is the Bank’s functional and 

presentational currency, and all values are rounded to the nearest QAR thousand except when otherwise indicated. 

Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and items included in the financial statements of 

each entity are measured using that functional currency. 

 

Use of estimates and judgements 

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with FAS requires management to make 

judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts 

of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. 

 

Going concern 

The Group’s management has made an assessment of the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and is 

satisfied that the Group has resources to continue in the business for the foreseeable future. Furthermore, the 

management is not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to 

continue as a going concern. Therefore, the consolidated financial statements continue to be prepared on the going 

concern basis. 

 

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are 

recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected. Information about 

significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgements in applying accounting policies that have the most 

significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements are described in Note 5. 

 

3. NEW STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS AND INTERPRETATIONS  

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements are 

consistent with those used in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 

December 2024. 
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3. NEW STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS AND INTERPRETATIONS (Continued) 

3.1 New standards, amendments and interpretations issued but not yet effective 

3.1.1 FAS 45: Quasi-Equity (Including Investment Accounts) 

 

AAOIFI has issued Financial Accounting Standard (FAS) 45 "Quasi-Equity (Including Investment Accounts)" during 

2023. The objective of this standard is to establish the principles for identifying, measuring, and presenting "quasi-

equity" instruments in the financial statements of Islamic Financial Institutions “IFIs”. 

 

The standard prescribes the principles of financial reporting to participatory investment instruments (including 

investment accounts) in which an IFI controls underlying assets (mostly, as working partner), on behalf of the 

stakeholders other than owner’s equity. This standard provides the overall criteria for on-balance sheet 

accounting for participatory investment instruments and quasi-equity, as well as, pooling, recognition, 

derecognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure for quasi-equity. 

 

This standard shall be effective for the financial reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2026 with an 

option to early adopt.  

 

The Group does not expect any significant impact on the adoption of this standard. 

 

3.1.2 FAS 46: Off-Balance-Sheet Assets Under Management 

 

AAOIFI has issued Financial Accounting Standard (“FAS”) 46 "Off-Balance-Sheet Assets Under Management" during 

2023. The objective of this standard is to establish principles and rules for recognition, measurement, disclosure, 

and derecognition of off-balance-sheet assets under management, based on Shari’a and international best 

practices. The standard aims to improve transparency, comparability, accountability, and governance of financial 

reporting related to off-balance-sheet assets under management. 

 

This standard is applicable to all IFIs with fiduciary responsibilities over asset(s) without control, except for the 

following: 

 

• The participants’ Takaful fund and / or participants’ investment fund of a Takaful institution; and 

• An investment fund managed by an institution, being a separate legal entity, which is subject to financial 

reporting in line with the requirements of the respective AAOIFI FAS. 

 

This standard shall be effective for the financial reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2026 with an 

option to early adopt. 

 

This standard shall be effective for the financial periods beginning on or after 1 January 2026 with an option to 

early adopt. This standard shall be adopted at the same time as adoption of FAS 45 “Quasi-Equity (Including 

Investment Accounts)”. 

 

The Group does not expect any significant impact on the adoption of this standard. 
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3. NEW STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS AND INTERPRETATIONS (Continued) 

3.1 New standards, amendments and interpretations issued but not yet effective (continued) 

 

3.1.3 FAS 47: Transfer of Assets Between Investment Pools 

 

AAOIFI has issued Financial Accounting Standard (“FAS”) 47 "Transfer of Assets Between Investment Pools" during 

2023.  The objective of this standard is to establish guidance on the accounting treatment and disclosures for 

transfers of assets between investment pools that are managed by the same institution or its related parties. The 

standard applies to transfers of assets that are not part of a business combination, a disposal of a business, or a 

restructuring of an institution. 

 

The standard defines an investment pool as a group of assets that are managed together to achieve a common 

investment objective, such as a fund, a portfolio, or a trust. The standard also defines a transfer of assets as a 

transaction or event that results in a change in the legal ownership or economic substance of the assets, such as 

a sale, a contribution, a distribution, or a reclassification. 

 

The transfer of assets between investment pools should be accounted for based on the substance of the 

transaction and the terms and conditions of the transfer agreement. The standard classifies transfers of assets 

into three categories: transfers at fair value, transfers at carrying amount, and transfers at other than fair value 

or carrying amount. The standard also specifies the disclosure requirements for transfers of assets between 

investment pools. 

 

This standard shall be effective for the financial periods beginning on or after 1 January 2026 with an option to 

early adopt.  

 

The Group does not expect any significant impact on the adoption of this standard. 

 

3.1.4 FAS 48: Promotional Gifts and Prizes 

 

This standard prescribes accounting and financial reporting requirements applicable to promotional gifts and 

prizes awarded by the Islamic financial institutions. The standard categorizes them into a) promotional gifts where 

entitlement occurs instantly; b) promotional prizes that are announced in advance to be awarded at a future date 

and c) loyalty programs where the obligation is accumulated over the period. 

 

This standard is effective for the financial periods beginning on or after 1 January 2026, with an option to early 

adopt. 

 

The Group does not expect any significant impact on the adoption of this standard. 

 

3.1.5 FAS 50 - Financial reporting for Islamic Investment institutions (including investment funds) 

 

This standard replaces “FAS 14 – Investment funds” and is not applicable to a) financial reporting for Sukuk holders 

and the Sukuk in the books of the originator; b) off-balance sheet assets under management that do not take form 

of a separate legal entity; c) investment institutions taking the form of a Waqf from Shari’ah perspective; and d) 

investment funds (e.g., participants’ investment funds) managed by Takaful institutions. 

 

This standard is effective for the financial periods beginning on or after 1 January 2027, with an option to early 

adopt. The Group does not expect any significant impact on the adoption of this standard. 
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3. NEW STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS AND INTERPRETATIONS (Continued) 

3.1 New standards, amendments and interpretations issued but not yet effective (continued) 

 

3.1.6 FAS 51 – Participatory Ventures 

 
AAOIFI has issued FAS 51 on 10 November 2025. This standard prescribes accounting and financial reporting 

principles for recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosures to apply in relation to participatory 

ventures (including most of the common structures / products based on Mudaraba and Musharaka). This standard 

shall be applied in respect of accounting and financial reporting by the investors, the working partners, as well as, 

the participatory ventures with regard to all such participatory ventures that fall within the scope of this standard, 

including those with fixed and variable equity / quasi-equity shares. 

 

This standard shall be effective for the financial periods beginning or after 1 January 2027. The Group does not 

expect any significant impact on the adoption of this standard. 

 

3.1.7 FAS 52 – Deferred Delivery Sales: Salam and Istisna 

 

AAOIFI has issued FAS 52 on 31 December 2025. This standard prescribes the accounting and financial reporting 

principles for recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosures related to deferred delivery sales 

transactions, applicable to the respective buyers and sellers. Such transactions include both Salam- and Istisna-

based deferred delivery sales transactions, but do not include Istisna-based development contracts which are 

subject of another standard being simultaneously issued. 

 

This standard shall be effective for the financial periods beginning or after 1 January 2027. The Group does not 

expect any significant impact on the adoption of this standard. 
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements are set out below: 

 

4.1 Basis for consolidation  
 

i. Subsidiaries 

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose entities) over which the Group has power to govern the 

financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. The existence and effect of 

potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing whether the 

Group controls another entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred 

to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date that control ceases. 

 

ii. Basis of consolidation 

The consolidated financial statements comprise of the financial statements of the Bank and its subsidiaries. All 

intra-group balances, transactions, income and expenses and unrealised profits and losses resulting from intra-

group transactions are eliminated in full on the consolidation. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been 

changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group. 

 

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method as at the acquisition date i.e. when control 

is transferred to the Group. The consideration transferred in the acquisition is generally measured at fair value, 

as are the identifiable net assets acquired. Any goodwill that arises is tested annually for impairment. Any gain on 

a bargain purchase is recognised in the consolidated income statement immediately. Transaction costs are 

expensed as incurred, except if they are related to the issue of debt or equity securities. 

 

iii. Non-controlling interests 

Interests in the equity of subsidiaries not attributable to the parent are reported in consolidated statement of 

financial position in owners’ equity as non-controlling interests. Profits or losses attributable to non-controlling 

interests are reported in the consolidated income statement as profits or losses attributable to non-controlling 

interests. Losses applicable to the non-controlling interests in a subsidiary are allocated to the non-controlling 

interests even if doing so causes the non-controlling interests to have a deficit balance. 

 

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests as transactions with equity owners of the Group. For 

purchases from non-controlling interests, the difference between any consideration paid and the relevant share 

acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in owners’ equity. Gains or losses on 

disposals to non-controlling interests are also recorded in owners’ equity. 

 

iv. Special purpose entities 

Special purpose entities (SPEs) are entities that are created to accomplish a narrow and well-defined objective 

such as the securitisation of particular assets, or the execution of a specific borrowing or investment transaction 

and usually voting rights are relevant for the operating of such entities. An investor that has decision-making 

power over an investee and exposure to variability of returns determines whether it acts as a principal or as an 

agent to determine whether there is a linkage between power and returns. The Group in its ordinary course of 

business may manage an asset or a business for the benefit of stakeholders other than its equity holders through 

an agency (usually investment agency) or similar arrangement. Control does not include situations whereby the 

institution has the power, but such power is exercisable in a fiduciary capacity, and not for the variable returns to 

the institution itself. Performance incentives receivable by an agent are in a fiduciary capacity, and hence not 

considered to be variable returns for the purpose of control assessment The Group in its fiduciary capacity 

manages and administers assets held in trust and other investment vehicles on behalf of investors. The financial 

statements of these entities are usually not included in these consolidated financial statements. 
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

4.1 Basis for consolidation (Continued) 

 

v. Loss of control  

When the Group losses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, any 

non-controlling interests and the other components of equity. Any surplus or deficit arising on the loss of control 

is recognised in consolidated income statement. Any interest retained in the former subsidiary, is measured at 

fair value when control is lost. Subsequently it is accounted for as an equity-accounted investee or in accordance 

with the Group’s accounting policy for investment securities depending on the level of influence retained.  

 

vi. Equity accounted investees  

This comprise investment in associates and joint ventures. Associates are those entities in which the Group has 

significant influence, but not control or joint control, over the financial and operating policies. Significant influence 

is presumed to exits when the Group holds between 20% and 50% of the voting power of another entity. A joint 

venture is an arrangement in which the Group has joint control, where the Group has rights to the net assets of 

the arrangement, rather than rights to its assets and obligations for its liabilities. 

 

Associates and Joint ventures are accounted for under equity method. These are initially recognised at cost and 

the carrying amount is increased or decreased to recognise the investor’s share of the profit or loss of the 

investees after the date of acquisition. Distributions received from an investees reduce the carrying amount of 

the investment. Adjustments to the carrying amount may also be necessary for changes in the investor’s 

proportionate interest in the investees arising from changes in the investee’s equity. When the Group’s share of 

losses exceeds its interest in an equity-accounted investees, the Group’s carrying amount is reduced to nil and 

recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive 

obligations or made payments on behalf of the equity-accounted investees. Equity accounting is discontinued 

when an associate is classified as held-for-sale. 

 

vii. Transactions eliminated on consolidation and equity accounting  

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses (except for foreign currency 

translation gains or losses) from intra-group transactions with subsidiaries are eliminated in preparing the 

consolidated financial statements. Intra-group gains on transactions between the Group and its equity-accounted 

investees are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the investees. Unrealised losses are also eliminated 

in the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment. Accounting 

policies of the subsidiaries and equity- accounted investees have been changed where necessary to ensure 

consistency with the policies adopted by the Group. 
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

4.2 Foreign currencies 
 

Transactions and balances 

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Qatari Riyals at the exchange rate prevailing at the date of 

the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Qatari Riyals 

at the rates ruling at the date of consolidated financial position.  
 

All differences from gains and losses resulting from settlement of such transactions and from the translation at 

year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in 

the consolidated income statement. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in foreign 

currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items 

measured at fair value in a foreign currency, including equity investments, are translated using the exchange rates 

at the date when the fair value was determined. Effects of exchange rate changes on non-monetary items 

measured at fair value in a foreign currency are recorded as part of the fair value gain or loss. 
 

Group companies 

The results and financial position of all the Group entities (none of which has the currency of a hyper-inflationary 

economy) that have a local currency different from the presentational currency are translated as follows: 
 

• Assets and liabilities for each financial position presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of 

that financial position, 

• Income and expenses for each income statement are translated at average exchange rates (unless this 

average is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the 

transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of the 

transactions); and 

• All resulting exchange differences are recognised as a separate component of the consolidated statement 

of changes in owners’ equity. 

 

4.3 Investment securities 

 

(i) Categorization and classification 

 

FAS 33 – “Investment in sukuk, shares and similar instruments” contains classification and measurement approach 

for investments in sukuk, shares and similar instruments that reflects the business model in which such 

investments are managed and the underlying cash flow characteristics. 

 

The Group categorizes each investment as: 

 

(a) equity-type instruments; 

(b) debt-type instruments (including monetary and non-monetary); and 

(c) other investment instruments. 

 

Debt-type instruments are a type of investment instruments, whereby the transaction structure results in creation 

of a monetary or non-monetary liability. Equity-type instruments are the instruments that evidence a residual 

interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all its liabilities and quasi-equity balances, including ordinary 

equity instruments and such other structured investment instruments that classify as equity instrument. Other 

investment instruments are such investment instruments which do not meet the definition of either debt-type or 

equity-type instruments. 
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

4.3 Investment securities (Continued) 
 

(i) Categorization and classification (continued) 
 

Unless irrevocable initial recognition choices provided in the standard are exercised, an institution shall classify 

investments as subsequently measured at either of (i) amortised cost, (ii) fair value through other comprehensive 

income or (iii) fair value through income statement, on the basis of both:  
 

(a) the Group’s business model for managing the investments; and 

(b) the expected cash flow characteristics of the investment in line with the nature of the underlying Islamic 

finance contracts. 

Classification 

Investments are classified based on the Group’s assessment of the business model within which the investments 

are managed, and assessment of whether the contractual terms of the investment represents either a debt-type 

instrument or other investment instrument having reasonably determinable effective yield. 

 

Investments in debt-type instruments are classified into the following categories: 1) at amortised cost or 2) at fair 

value through other comprehensive income. 

 

Amortised cost 

An investment shall be measured at amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met:  

 

(a) the investment is held within a business model whose objective is to hold such investment in order to 

collect expected cash flows till maturity of the instrument; and 

(b) the investment represents either a debt-type instrument or other investment instrument having 

reasonable determinable effective yield. 

 

Fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) 

An investment shall be measured at FVOCI if both of the following conditions are met: 

 

(a) the investment is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting expected 

cash flows and selling the investment; and 

(b) the investment represents a non-monetary debt-type instrument or other investment instrument having 

reasonable determinable effective yield. 

 

Fair value through income statement (“FVIS”) 

An investment shall be measured at FVIS unless it is measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI or if irrevocable 

classification at initial recognition is applied. 

 

Irrevocable classification at initial recognition 

The Group may make an irrevocable election to designate a particular investment, at initial recognition, being: 

 

(a) an equity-type instrument that would otherwise be measured at FVIS, to present subsequent changes in 

other comprehensive income; and 

(b) a non-monetary debt-type instrument or other investment instrument, as measured at FVIS if doing so 

eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise 

from measuring assets or correlated liabilities or recognizing the gains and losses on them on different 

bases. 
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

4.3 Investment securities (Continued) 
 

(ii) Recognition and de-recognition 
 

Investment securities are recognised at the trade date i.e. the date that the Group contracts to purchase or sell  

the asset, at which date the Group becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. 
 

Investment securities are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have 

expired or where the Group has transferred substantially all risk and rewards of ownership 
 

(iii) Measurement 
 

Initial recognition 

Investment securities are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs, except for transaction costs 

incurred to acquire investments at FVIS which are charged to consolidated income statement. 
 

Subsequent measurement 

Investments at FVIS are remeasured at fair value at the end of each reporting period and the resultant 

remeasurement gains or losses is recognised in the consolidated income statement in the period in which they 

arise. Subsequent to initial recognition, investments classified at amortised cost are measured at amortised cost 

using the effective profit method less any impairment allowance. All gains or losses arising from the amortisation 

process and those arising on de-recognition or impairment of the investments, are recognised in the consolidated 

income statement. 
 

Investments at FVOCI are remeasured at their fair values at the end of each reporting period and the resultant 

gain or loss, arising from a change in the fair value of investments are taken through other comprehensive income 

and presented in a separate fair value reserve within equity. 
 

The Group may elect to present in the statement of changes in equity changes in the fair value of certain 

investments in equity-type instruments that are not held for trading. The election is made on an instrument by-

instrument basis on initial recognition and is irrevocable. Gains and losses on such equity-type instruments are 

never subsequently reclassified to consolidated income statement, including on disposal. However, cumulative 

gains and losses recognised in fair value reserve are transferred to retained earnings on disposal of an investment. 

Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) are not reported separately from other changes in fair 

value. Dividends, when representing a return on such investments, continue to be recognised in consolidated 

income statement, unless they clearly represent a recovery of part of the cost of the investment, in which case 

they are recognised in consolidated statements of changes in equity. 
 

For debt type investments classified as FVOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in the 

consolidated statement of changes in equity is transferred to the consolidated income statement. 
 

QFCRA regulations with respect to accounting treatment of equity investments at fair value through equity 
 

QFCRA issued an instruction dated 4 October 2020 on accounting treatment for investments in equity instruments 

to ensure that harmonisation is achieved between QFCRA-regulated conventional banks and Islamic banks. FAS 

33’s exemption to carry equity investments at cost less impairment, when a reliable measure of fair value when 

on a continuous basis cannot be determined, was removed. Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) 

are not reported separately from other changes in fair value and are reported as part of fair value reserve within 

equity statement. Cumulative gains and losses recognised as part of fair value reserve within equity are 

transferred to retained earnings on disposal of equity investments at fair value through equity. 
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

4.3 Investment securities (Continued) 

 

(iv) Measurement principles 

 

Amortised cost measurement 

The amortised cost of a financial asset or liability is the amount at which the financial asset or liability is measured 

at initial recognition, minus capital repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective 

profit method of any difference between the initial amount recognised and the maturity amount, minus any 

reduction for impairment. The effective profit rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash 

payments through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net 

carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. The calculation of the effective profit rate includes all 

fees and points paid or received that are an integral part of the effective profit rate. 

 

Fair value measurement 

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or an obligation settled between well informed 

and willing parties (seller and buyer) in an arm’s length transaction. The Group measures the fair value of quoted 

investments using the market bid price for that instrument at the close of business on the consolidated statement 

of financial position date. For investment where there is no quoted market price, a reasonable estimate of the fair 

value is determined by reference to the current market value of another instrument, which is substantially the 

same or is based on the assessment of future cash flows. The cash equivalent values are determined by the Group 

by discounting future cash flows at current profit rates for contracts with similar term and risk characteristics. 
 

4.4 Financial assets and liabilities 
 

Recognition 

Financial assets and liabilities are recognised on the trade date at which the Group becomes a party of the 

contractual provisions of the instruments. 
 

De-recognition 

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is 

derecognised where:  
 

• the right to receive cash flows from the asset has expired; or  

• the Group retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an obligation to pay 

them in full without material delay to a third party under a "pass-through" arrangement; or  

• the Group has transferred its right to receive cash flows from the asset and either: (a) has transferred 

substantially all the risks and rewards of the assets, or (b) has neither transferred nor retained 

substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.  
 

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset and has neither transferred nor 

retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is 

recognised to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement in the asset. 
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

4.4 Financial assets and liabilities (continued) 

 

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or 

expired. 

 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are only offset, and the net amounts reported in the consolidated 

statement of financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and 

the Group intends to either settle these on a net basis or intends to realise the asset and settle the liability 

simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable 

in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Bank or the 

counterparty. 

 

4.5 Cash and cash equivalents 

 

Cash and cash equivalents as referred to in the consolidated statement of cash flows comprise of cash and 

balances with banks and amounts of placements with financial institutions with an original maturity of three 

months or less. Placements with financial institutions comprise placements with banks in the form of Wakala and 

Murabaha investments. They are stated at cost plus related accrued profit and net of provision for impairment, if 

any. 

 

4.6 Due from banks 

 

Due from banks represent amounts of placements with financial institutions with an original maturity more than 

three months. Due from banks placements are invested under Wakala, Murabaha and Mudaraba terms. They are 

stated at cost plus related accrued profit and net of provision for impairment, if any. 

 

4.7 Financing assets 

 

Financing activities comprise Murabaha and Ijarah contracts: 

 

Due from Murabaha contracts 

Murabaha receivables are stated at their gross principal amounts less any amount received, provision for 

impairment, profit in suspense and unearned profit. These receivables are written off and charged against specific 

provisions only in circumstances where all reasonable restructuring and collection activities have been exhausted, 

any recoveries from previously written off financing activities are written back to the specific provision. The Group 

considers the promise made in Murabaha to the purchase orderer as obligatory. 

 

Due from Ijarah contracts 

Ijarah receivables arise from financing structures when the purchase and immediate lease of an asset are at cost 

plus an agreed profit (in total forming fair value). The amount is settled on a deferred payment basis. Ijarah 

receivable are carried at the aggregate of the minimum lease payments, less deferred income (in total forming 

amortised cost) and impairment allowance (if any). Ijarah income is recognised on time-apportioned basis over 

the lease period. Income related to non-performing accounts is excluded from the consolidated income 

statement. 

 

 



LESHA BANK L.L.C (PUBLIC) 
 
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

As at and for the year ended 31 December 2025 (expressed in QAR’000)  

 

27 

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

4.8 Impairment  
 

Impairment of financial assets (other than equity type of investments classified as fair value through equity) 

The Group assesses impairment at each financial reporting date whenever there is objective evidence that a 

specific financial asset or a group of financial assets may be impaired. 
 

The Group applies a three-stage approach to measuring credit losses on financial assets carried at amortised cost. 

Assets migrate through the following three stages based on the change in financing assets quality since initial 

recognition. 
 

Stage 1: 12 months ECL – not credit impaired 

Stage 1 includes financial assets on initial recognition and that do not have a significant increase in credit risk 

since the initial recognition or that have low credit risk. For these assets, ECL are recognised on the gross carrying 

amount of the asset based on the expected credit losses that result from default events that are possible within 

12 months after the reporting date. Profit is computed on the gross carrying amount of the asset. 
 

Stage 2: Lifetime ECL - not credit impaired 

Stage 2 includes financial assets that have had a significant increase in credit risk (SICR) since initial recognition 

but that do not have objective evidence of impairment. For these assets, lifetime ECL are recognised, but profit is 

still calculated on the gross carrying amount of the asset. Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses that result 

from all possible default events over the expected life of the financial instrument. 
 

Stage 3: Lifetime ECL - credit impaired 

Stage 3 includes financial assets that have objective evidence of impairment at the reporting date. For these 

assets, lifetime ECL are recognised. 
 

Financing assets carried at amortised cost are impaired when their carrying amounts exceed their expected 

present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective profit rate. Subsequent 

recovery of impairment losses are recognised through the consolidated income statement, the reversal of 

impairment losses shall not result in a carrying amount of the asset that exceeds what the amortised cost would 

have been had the impairment not been recognised. 
 

Impairment of equity type of investments classified as fair value through equity 

In case of equity investments classified as fair value through equity, objective evidence would include a significant 

or prolonged decline in the fair value of the investment below its carrying amount. The determination of what is 

significant or prolonged requires judgement and is assessed for each investment separately.   
 

Where there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss - measured as the difference between the acquisition 

cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously recognised in the 

consolidated income statement - is removed from equity and recognised in the consolidated income statement. 

Impairment losses on equity investments are not reversed through the consolidated income statement; increases 

in their fair value after impairment are recognised directly in the fair value reserve in the consolidated statement 

of changes in owners’ equity. 

 

Impairment of non-financial assets  

The Group assesses at each reporting date if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value 

of a non-financial asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an 

asset is required, the Group makes an estimate of the asset’s recoverable amount. Where the carrying amount of 

an asset (or cash-generating unit) exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset (or cash-generating unit) is 

considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. 
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

4.8 Impairment (continued) 
 

Restructured financial assets 

If the terms of a financial asset are renegotiated or modified or an existing financial asset is replaced with a new 

one due to financial difficulties of the financed counterparty, then an assessment is made of whether the financial 

asset should be derecognized and ECL are measured as follows:  

• If the expected restructuring will not result in derecognition of existing asset, then the expected cash 

flows arising from the modified financial asset are included in calculating the cash shortfalls from existing 

asset; 

• If the expected restructuring will result in derecognition of the existing asset, then the expected fair value 

of the new asset is treated as the final cash flow from the existing financial asset at the time of its 

derecognition. This amount is included in calculating the cash shortfalls from the existing financial asset 

that are discounted from the expected date of derecognition to the reporting date using the original 

effective profit rate of the existing financial asset. 
 

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each financial position date as to whether there is any 

indication that previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such 

indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only 

if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last 

impairment loss was recognised. If that is the case, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable 

amount. Impairment losses relating to goodwill cannot be reversed for subsequent increases in the recoverable 

amount in future periods. 
 

4.9 Investment in real estate  
 

Investment in real estate comprises of building and other related assets which are held by the Group to earn 

rentals and/ or are expected to benefit from capital appreciation. Initially investments are recognised at cost 

including directly attributable expenditures. Subsequently to initial recognition, investments are carried at fair 

value. The fair value of investments is re-measured at each reporting date and the difference between the carrying 

value and fair value is recognised in the consolidated statement of changes in owners’ equity under property fair 

value reserve.  
 

In case of losses, they are then recognised in equity under property fair value reserve to the extent of availability 

of the reserve through earlier recognised gains assumed, in case such losses exceeded the amount available in the 

equity fair value reserve for a particular investment in real estate, excess losses are then recognised in the 

consolidated income statement under unrealised re-measurement losses on investments.  
 

Upon occurrence of future gains, unrealised gains related to the current period are recognised in the consolidated 

income statement to the extent of crediting back previously recognised losses in the consolidated income 

statement and excess gains then are recognised in the equity under property fair value reserve.  
 

Investment in real estate is derecognised when they have been disposed off or transferred to investment in real 

estate-held for sale when the investment in real estate is permanently withdrawn from use and no future 

economic benefit is expected from its disposal. Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment 

in real estate along with any available fair value reserves attributable to that investment are recognised in the 

consolidated income statement in the year of retirement or disposal.  
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

4.10 Assets held-for-sale and discontinued operations 

Classification 

The Group classifies non-current assets or disposal groups as held-for-sale if the carrying amount is expected to 

be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use within twelve months, 

which can be extended in certain circumstances beyond due to events outside of Group’s control and there is 

evidence that the Group is still committed to the plan to sell the non-current assets or disposal groups.   

 

A disposal group is a group of assets to be disposed of, by sale or otherwise, together as a group in a single 

transaction, and liabilities directly associated with those assets that will be transferred in the transaction. 

 

If the criteria for classification as held for sale are no longer met, the entity shall cease to classify the asset (or 

disposal group) as held for sale and shall measure the asset at the lower of its carrying amount before the asset 

(or disposal group) was classified as held-for-sale, adjusted for any depreciation, recognised or revaluations that 

would have been recognised had the asset (or disposal group) not been classified as held-for-sale and its 

recoverable amount at the date of the subsequent decision not to sell. 

 

Any impairment loss on a disposal group is allocated first to goodwill, and then to the remaining assets and 

liabilities on a pro rata basis, except that no loss is allocated to financial assets and investment property carried 

at fair value, which continue to be measured in accordance with the Group’s other accounting policies. Impairment 

losses on initial classification as held-for-sale and subsequent gains and losses on remeasurement are recognised 

in the consolidated income statement. Gains are not recognised in excess of any cumulative impairment loss.  

 

Measurement 

Non-current assets or disposal groups classified as held-for-sale, other than financial instruments, are measured 

at the lower of its carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. Financial instruments that are non-current 

assets and ‘held-for-sale’ continue to be measured in accordance with their stated accounting policies. On 

classification of equity-accounted investee as held-for-sale, equity accounting is ceased at the time of such 

classification as held-for-sale. Non-financial assets (i.e. intangible assets, equipment) are no longer amortised or 

depreciated. 

 

Discontinued operations 

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group’s business, the operations, and cash flows of which can be 

clearly distinguished from the rest of the Group and which: 

- represents a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations; 

- is part of a single coordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of business or geographical area of 

operations; or 

- is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to re-sale. 

 

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs on disposal or when the operation meets the criteria to be 

classified as held-for-sale, if earlier. When an operation is classified as a discontinued operation, the comparative 

consolidated income statement is re-presented as if the operation had been discontinued from the start of the 

comparative year. 
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

4.11 Fixed assets 

Fixed assets are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment charges (if any). Historical 

cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. Subsequent costs are 

included in the assets’ carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable 

that future benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured 

reliably.  

 

All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the consolidated income statement during the financial year in 

which they are incurred.  The Group depreciates fixed assets except for land, on a straight-line basis over their 

estimated useful lives as follows: 

 

Category description Years 

Equipment 3 – 5 

Furniture and fixtures 3 – 10 

Building renovations  5 – 10 

Motor vehicles 5 

 

4.12 Intangible assets 

Intangible assets include the value of computer software and intangible assets that were identified in the process 

of a business combination. The cost of intangible assets is their fair value as at the date of acquisition. Following 

initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated 

impairment losses, if any.  

 

Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method to write down the cost of intangible assets to their 

residual values over their estimated useful lives as follows:  

 

Category description Years 

Software and core banking system 3 – 10 

 

4.13 Customer current accounts 

 

Balances in customer current accounts do not carry any return and are recognised when received by the Group. 

The transactions are measured as the amount received by the Group at the time of contracting. At the end of the 

reporting period, these accounts are measured at amortised cost. 
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

4.14 Quasi-equity 
 

Quasi-equity is an element of the financial statements that represents participatory contributions received by an 

institution on a profit sharing or participation basis. It has: 

 

­ primary characteristics of equity i.e., in case of loss (unless negligence / misconduct / breach of 

contractual terms is proved), the Group is not liable to return the lost funds to the fund providers and the 

fund providers share the residual interest in the underlying assets or business; 

­ certain characteristics of a liability i.e., it has a maturity or a put option of redemption / liquidation; and 

­ certain specific features i.e., the rights of the fund providers are limited only to the underlying assets or 

business and not on the whole of the institution, as well as, they do not have certain rights associated only 

with owners' equity. 
 

All contributions of quasi-equity holders are measured by the amount received during the time of contracting. At 

the end of the financial period, the equity of quasi-equity holders is measured at the amount received plus share 

of profit and related reserves less amounts settled. 
 

Quasi-equity holders include participatory investment accounts (unrestricted investment accounts and other on-

balance-sheet investment accounts). 
 

Participatory investment accounts 

Participatory investment accounts are funds held by the Group, which it can invest at its own discretion. The 

participatory investment account holders authorises the Group to invest the account holders’ funds in a manner 

which the Group deems appropriate without laying down any restrictions as to where, how and for what purpose 

the funds should be invested. 
 

The Group charges a management fee (Mudarib fees) to participatory investment account holders. Of the total 

income from investment accounts, the income attributable to account holders is allocated to participatory 

investment accounts after setting aside provisions and deducting the Group’s share of income as Mudarib. The 

allocation of income is determined by the management of the Group within the allowed profit-sharing limits as 

per the terms and conditions of the investment accounts. 
 

Up to 31 December 2023, participatory investment accounts were referred to as Equity of unrestricted investment 

account holders. 

 

4.15 Off-balance-sheet assets under management  

 

Off-balance-sheet assets under management represents funds received by the Group from third parties for 

investment in specified products as directed by the investment account holders. These assets are managed in a 

fiduciary capacity and the institution has no entitlement to these assets. Clients bear all of the risks and earn all 

of the rewards on these investments. Off-balance-sheet assets under management are not included in the 

consolidated statement of financial position since the Group does not have the right to use or dispose these 

investments except within the conditions of the contract between the Group and its clients. 
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

4.16 Share capital and reserve 

 

The Group has issued ordinary shares that are classified as equity instruments. Incremental external costs that 

are directly attributable to the issue of these are recognised in equity.  

 

Legal reserve  

In accordance with the Bank’s Articles of Association, up to 10% of the net profit for the year may be transferred 

to legal reserve each year until this reserve is equal to 50% of the paid-up share capital. The reserve is not available 

to distribution except in the circumstances stipulated in the Bank’s Articles of Association. 

 

Dividends on ordinary shares 

Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised in equity in the period in which they are approved by the Bank’s equity 

holders. 

 

4.17 Recognition of income 

 

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the 

revenue can be reliably measured. Income earned by the Group is recognised on the following basis: 

 

Income from financing activities 

 

Murabaha 

Profit from Murabaha transactions is recognised when the income is both contractually determinable and 

quantifiable at the commencement of the transaction. Such income is recognised on a time-apportioned basis 

over the period of the transaction. Where the income from a contract is not contractually determinable or 

quantifiable, it is recognised when the realisation is reasonably certain or when actually realised. Income related 

to non-performing accounts is excluded from the consolidated income statement. 

 

Income from placements with financial institutions  

Income from short term placements is recognised on a time apportioned basis over the period of the contract 

based on the principal amounts outstanding and the expected profits.  

 

Rental income  

The Group recognises rental income from properties according to the rent agreements entered between the 

Group and the tenants on an accrual basis over the period of the contract. 

 

Dividend income  

Dividend income is recognised when the Group’s right to receive the dividend is established.  

 

Fee income 

Asset Management fee is recognized as per contractual terms when services are rendered over the period of the 

contract. Arrangement fee and advisory fee are recognized when earned on completion of the underlying 

transactions. Performance fees are only recognized once it is highly probable that there would be no significant 

reversal of any accumulated revenue in the future. Estimates are needed to assess the risk that achieved earnings 

may be reversed before realization due to the risk of lower future overall performance of the underlying 

investments. 
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

4.18 Employee benefits 

 

Defined contribution plans 

The Group provides for its contribution to the State administered retirement fund for Qatari employees in 

accordance with the retirement law, and the resulting charge is included within the staff costs in the consolidated 

income statement. The Group has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The 

contributions are recognised when they are due. 

 

Employee’s end of service benefits 

The Group establishes a provision for all end of service benefits payable to employees in accordance with the 

Group’s policies which comply with laws and regulations applicable to the Group. Liability is calculated on the basis 

of an individual employee’s salary and period of service at the financial position date. The provision for employees’ 

end of service benefits is included within other liabilities. 

 

4.19 Provisions 

 

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past 

event, and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the 

obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 

 

4.20 Contingent liabilities 

 

Contingent liabilities include guarantees, letters of credit, Group’s obligations with respect to unilateral promise 

to buy/sell currencies, profit rate swaps and others. These do not constitute actual assets or liabilities at the 

consolidated statement of financial position date except for assets and obligations relating to fair value gains or 

losses on these derivative financial instruments. 

 

4.21 Shari’a-compliant-risk-management instruments  

 

Shari’a-compliant-risk-management instruments, including unilateral/bilateral promises to buy/sell currencies, 

profit rate swaps, currency options are carried at their fair value. All Shari’a-compliant-risk-management 

instruments are carried as assets when fair value is positive, and as liabilities when fair value is negative. Changes 

in the fair value of these instruments are included in the consolidated income statement for the year (Net foreign 

exchange gain / (loss)).  

 

4.22 Segment reporting 

 

An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it may earn 

revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Group’s 

other components, whose operating results are reviewed regularly by the senior management to make decisions 

about resources allocated to each segment and assess its performance, and for which discrete financial 

information is available. Segment reporting are disclosed in Note 28. 

 

4.23 Fiduciary Activities 

 

The Group acts as fund manager and in other fiduciary capacities that result in the holding or placing of assets on 

behalf of individuals, corporates and other institutions. These assets and any income arising thereon are excluded 

from these consolidated financial statements, as they are not assets of the Group. 
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

4.24 Income tax 
 

(a) Current income tax 

The Bank is subject to income tax in Qatar in accordance with Decree no 13 for the year 2010 of the Ministry of 

Economy and Commerce addressing QFC Tax regulations applicable as of 1 January 2010. Income tax expense is 

charged to the consolidated income statement. 
 

As per applicable Tax Laws and regulations, listed companies are exempt from income tax. 
 

(b) Deferred income tax 

Deferred income tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method for tax loss carry forwards and temporary 

differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial 

reporting purposes.  
 

Deferred tax assets for deductible temporary differences and tax loss carry forwards are recorded only to the 

extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the deductions can be utilised. 
 

4.25 Zakah 
 

Zakah is directly borne by the equity holders. The Group does not collect or pay Zakah on behalf of its equity 

holders in accordance with the Articles of Association.  
 

5. USE OF ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS  

In the preparation of the consolidated financial statements, the Group makes estimates and assumptions that 

affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are 

based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events. 
 

(a) Judgements  

Establishing the criteria for determining whether credit risk on an exposure subject to credit risk has increased 

significantly since initial recognition, determining methodology for incorporating forward looking information 

into measurement of ECL and selection and approval of models used to measure ECL refer to note 4.8 and note 

25.6.5 for more information .  
 

(i) Classification of investments 

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management decides on acquisition of an investment 

whether it should be classified as investments carried at fair value through income statement or investments 

carried at fair value through equity or investments carried at amortised cost. The classification of each investment 

reflects the management’s intention in relation to each investment and is subject to different accounting 

treatments based on such classification. 
 

(ii) Special purpose entities 

The Group sponsors the formation of special purpose entities (SPE’s) primarily for the purpose of allowing clients 

to hold investments. The Group provides corporate administration, investment management and advisory services 

to these SPE’s, which involve the Group making decisions on behalf of such entities. The Group administers and 

manages these entities on behalf of its clients, who are by and large third parties and are the economic 

beneficiaries of the underlying investments. The Group does not consolidate SPE’s that it does not have the power 

to control. In determining whether the Group has the power to control an SPE, judgements are made about the 

objectives of the SPE’s activities, its exposure to the risks and rewards, as well as about the Group intention and 

ability to make operational decisions for the SPE and whether the Group derives benefits from such decisions.  
 

(iii) Impairment of equity investments at fair value through equity – refer to note 4.3. 
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5. USE OF ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued) 

(b) Estimations 

(i) Impairment of exposures subject to credit risk carried at amortised cost  

Determining inputs into ECL measurement model including incorporation of forward-looking information refer to 

note 4.8 and  note 25.6.5 for more information. 

 

(ii) Measurement of fair value of unquoted equity investments  

The group determines fair value of equity investments that are not quoted in active markets by using valuation 

techniques such as discounted cashflows, income approach and market approaches. Fair value estimates are 

made at a specific point in time, based on market conditions and information about the investee companies. These 

estimates are subjective in nature and involve uncertainties and matter of significant judgment and therefore, 

cannot be determined with precision. There is no certainty about future events such as continued operating 

profits and financial strengths. It is reasonably possible based on existing knowledge, that outcomes within the 

next financial year that are different from assumptions could require a material adjustment to the carrying 

amount of the investments. In case where discounted cash flows models have been used to estimate fair values, 

the future cashflows have been estimated by the management based on information form and discussion with 

representatives of investee companies and based on the latest available audited and unaudited financial 

statements. The basis of valuation has been reviewed by the management in terms of the appropriateness of the 

methodology, soundness of assumptions and correctness of calculations refer to note 27. 

 

Valuation of equity investments are measured at fair value through equity which involves judgment and is normally 

based on one of the following: 

­ Valuation by independent external value for underlying properties / projects; 

­ Recent arms-length market transaction; 

­ Current fair value of another contract that is substantially similar; 

­ Present value of expected cash flows at current rates applicable for items with similar terms and risk 

characteristics; or 

­ Application of other valuation models. 

 

6. CASH AND BANK BALANCES 

Note 31 December 31 December

2025 2024      

Cash in hand 30                      30                      

Balances with banks (current accounts) 99,358               67,416                

Placements with financial institutions 2,919,008          3,026,345          

Provision for impairment 25.6.5 (3,834)                (3,931)                

3,014,562          3,089,860         

Less: balances with maturity of more than 90 days (1,634,496)         (1,141,741)           

Add: provision for impairment (non-cash) 3,834                 3,931                  

Cash and cash equivalents 1,383,900          1,952,050          
 

 

Placements with financial institutions represent inter-bank placements in the form of Wakala and Murabaha. 
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7. FINANCING ASSETS 

Note 31 December 31 December

2025 2024

Murabaha financing 466,542             352,578             

Deferred investment sales 90,087               179,132               

Others 59,338               31,527                

Total financing assets 615,967              563,237             

Deferred profit (26,081)              (40,820)             

Provision for impairment on financing assets 25.6.5 (379,749)            (347,039)            

Net financing assets 210,137               175,378              
 

 

8. INVESTMENTS SECURITIES 

Note 31 December 31 December

2025 2024

Classified as fair value through income statement

- Equity type (unquoted) 1,147,193            627,424             

- Fund type 459,250             279,180              

(i) 1,606,443          906,604            

Debt-type classified at amortised cost

- Debt type sukuk investments 18,200               41,860               

  Accrued profit 676                     854                    

  Unamortised premiums, net (9)                       107                     

  Allowance for impairment (1,126)                  (1,094)                

17,741                 41,727                

Classified as fair value through other comprehensive income

- Equity type (quoted) (ii) 12,769                51,908               

- Equity type (unquoted) 77,567                 79,973                

- Debt type sukuk investments (iii) 2,478,079          1,974,565          

2,568,415           2,106,446          

4,192,599           3,054,777           

 
(i) Profit on re-measurement of investments at fair value through income statement for the year ended 31 

December 2025 was QAR 18.7 million (2024: QAR 0.2 million). 

 

(ii) During the year ended 31 December 2025, the bank recorded a negative fair value reserve of QAR 1.6 million 

(2024: a positive fair value of QAR 1.9 million) on listed equity investments. 

 

(iii) During the year ended 31 December 2025, the Bank recognized a positive fair value reserve of QAR 36.0 million 

(2024: a positive fair value of QAR 3 million) related to these sukuk investments. Sukuk investments of nominal 

value of QAR 1,591.6 million (2024: QAR 697.4 million) and fair value of QAR 1,649.8 million (2024: QAR 708.9 

million) of the Group have been pledged as security for bank financing liability of QAR 1,422.7 million (2024: 

QAR 597 million). 
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8. INVESTMENTS SECURITIES (Continued) 

Movements in the investments at fair value are as follows: 

 Investments  

at fair value 

through equity 

 Investments at 

fair value

through income

statement 

Total

 Investments  at 

fair value 

through equity 

 Investments at 

fair value

through income

statement 

Total

 At the beginning of the year 2,106,446           906,604             3,013,050   1,641,331             698,388             2,339,719    

Additions:

Sukuks, net 469,013              -                           469,013      411,118                -                          411,118        

Equity investment, net (35,620)               1,602,849           1,567,229     55,116                 372,607              427,723       

Disposal (4,552)                  (1,072,592)           (1,077,144)    -                          (138,069)            (138,069)     

Allowance for impairment (1,490)                 -                           (1,490)          1,501                   -                          1,501           

Transfer from / (to) assets  held-for-sale -                           83,107                 83,107         -                          -                          -                  

Fair value adjustments 34,618                 86,475                 121,093        (2,620)                 (26,322)              (28,942)      

At the end of the year 2,568,415            1,606,443           4,174,858    2,106,446           906,604             3,013,050   

31 December 2025 31 December 2024

 
 

8.1 Gain on disposal of equity investments 

During the year, the Bank disposed of its equity investments with total carrying value of QAR 1,072.6 million (2024: 

QAR 138.1 million) and recognized a gain on disposal of equity investments of QAR 70.9 million (2024: QAR 84.6 

million). 

 

9. INVESTMENT IN REAL ESTATE 

The table below summarizes the movement in investments in real estate during the year: 

31 December 31 December

2025 2024

At the beginning of the year 270,024             264,262             

(Disposal) / addition / de-consolidation (117,026)             (278,149)            

Provision for impairment on investments in real estate (11,012)                -                         

Reclass from intangibles 15,070                -                         

Transferred from assets held-for-sale -                          290,307             

Fair value gain / (loss) on re-measurement of investments in real estate -                          (6,396)               

At the end of the year 157,056              270,024             

 
 

(i) In 2024, the Bank exited its investment in real estate located in Al Messila, State of Qatar and recognized a 

disposal gain of QAR 13.9 million in the statement of income for the year ended 31 December 2024. 

Furthermore, investment in real estate was reclassified to continuing operations (refer to note 12) 

 

(ii) Certain improvements related to investments in real estate have been reclassified from intangibles (refer 

note 12).  

 

(iii) During the year, the bank fully provided for a real estate investment in Sharjah Land.  
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10. FIXED ASSETS  

 Equipment 

 Furniture 

and fixture 

 Motor 

vehicles 

 Right of 

use assets 

 Capital 

working in 

progress  Total 

Cost

As at 1 January 2025             2,138           12,529              710         10,414                      -           25,791 

Additions              834                 69                  -                   -              1,764             2,667 

As at 31 December 2025             2,972           12,598              710         10,414              1,764          28,458 

Accumulated depreciation

As at 1 January 2025           (1,426)          (5,509)            (601)         (6,508)                      -        (14,044)

Depreciation charge             (764)            (2,512)             (86)           (2,131)                      -          (5,493)

As at 31 December 2025           (2,190)           (8,021)            (687)         (8,639)                      -          (19,537)

Net book value as at 31 December 2025               782             4,577               23             1,775              1,764             8,921 

 Cost 

As at 1 January 2024             2,114           12,223             870          10,414                 376          25,997 

Additions                 24                 96                  -                   -                 142               262 

Transferred from Capital working in progress                    -                210                  -                   -               (210)                    - 

Adjustments                    -                    -                  -                   -              (308)             (308)

Disposals                    -                    -           (160)                   -                      -              (160)

As at 31 December 2024             2,138           12,529              710          10,414                      -           25,791 

Accumulated depreciation

As at 1 January 2024             (720)          (3,029)           (475)          (4,377)                      -           (8,601)

Depreciation charge             (706)          (2,480)            (170)           (2,131)                      -          (5,487)

Adjustments                    -                    -               44                   -                      -                 44 

As at 31 December 2024           (1,426)          (5,509)           (601)         (6,508)                      -        (14,044)

Net book value as at 31 December 2024                712            7,020             109           3,906                      -            11,747 

 
 

11. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

31 December 31 December

2025 2024

 Cost: 

 At the beginning of the year 56,153                38,385               

 Additions during the year 2,256                  542                    

 Transferred from capital work in progress -                          308                    

 Reclass to investments in real estate (refer note 9) (16,918)               16,918                

 At the end of the year 41,491                56,153               

 Amortisation 

 At the beginning of the year (38,534)              (35,831)              

 Amortisation charge for the year (1,235)                 (1,667)                

 Transferred 1,848                  (1,036)                

 Write-off during the year -                         

 At the end of the year (37,921)               (38,534)             

 Net book value 

 At the beginning of the year 17,619                 2,554                 

 At the end of the year 3,570                  17,619                
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12. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES CLASSIFIED AS HELD-FOR-SALE 

Assets and liabilities of disposal groups classified as held–for-sale comprise of: 

31 December 31 December

2025 2024

Equity investments held-for-sale -                          83,106               

Liabilities classified as held-for-sale 13,723                13,723                
 

12.1 Assets and liabilities of Real Estate Structures 

As a part of its business, the Bank from time to time enters into various structures to invest indirectly in real estate 

properties using special purpose vehicles (“SPV”) with an intention to sell substantial part of it to investors. Until 

the Bank ceases its control over those SPVs, they are consolidated by the Bank in accordance with FAS 23 whereby 

an entity needs to consolidate an SPV based on economic substance despite the fact that the SPV is not legally 

owned by and not legally related to the Bank. The financings of these SPVs related to the real estate property have 

no recourse to the Bank. 

(a) US Real Estate Structures 

In 2019, the Bank entered into a structure to invest in real estate within the United States of America and indirectly 

acquired 98.04% in real estate property (the “Fairview”). 

 

(b) UK Real Estate Structures 

In 2017, the Bank entered into a structure to invest indirectly to acquire 100% in a real estate property in the United 

Kingdom (the “UK Real Estate Structure”). The real estate was financed partly by the Bank through a Murabaha 

contract with an option to acquire the underlying real estate. As of 31st December 2024, the Bank had sold a 71% 

stake out of 100% in the UK Real Estate Structure to its investors. 

 

In 2024, these investments are reclassified to continuing operations and the financial results of the above Real 

Estate Structures are consolidated in these consolidated financial statements. During the year, based on 

consolidation reassessment, UK real estate structures have been deconsolidated. 

 

12.2 Assets and liabilities of Private Equity Structure 

As part of its business, the Bank from time to time enters various structures to invest indirectly in private equity 

investment using special purpose vehicles (“SPV”) with an intention to sell substantial part of it to investors. In 

2022, the Bank entered into a structure to invest in a private equity within Europe. During the year, the remaining 

unsold portion of QAR 83.1 million was reclassified as investments securities in the consolidated financial 

statements. 
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12. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES CLASSIFIED AS HELD-FOR-SALE (Continued) 

12.3 Analysis of disposal group assets/liabilities, results and cashflows 

(a) Assets and liabilities of disposal groups classified as held-for-sale 

 

Analysis of assets and liabilities of disposal groups, which include Real Estate structures are as follows:  

31 December 31 December

Note 2025 2024

Assets classified as held-for-sale

Non-financial assets

Equity investments held-for-sale -                          83,106               

Total non-financial assets -                          83,106               

Total assets classified as held for sale -                          83,106               

Liabilities classified as held-for-sale

Due to related parties 23 13,723                13,723                

Total liabilities classified as held for sale 13,723                13,723                

Net carrying value (13,723)               69,383               
 

 

13. OTHER ASSETS 

Other assets comprise the following: 

31 December 31 December

Note 2025 2024

Other non-financial assets

Prepayments                    2,621 1,818                  

Total other non-financial assets 2,621                  1,818                  

Other financial assets

Other receivables 95,436               67,475               

Advances for Investments 399,746             30,537               

Due from related parties 23                   9,100 9,100                 

Fair value of Sharia-compliant-risk-management instruments 26.2 2,765                  9,124                  

Accrued income                           - 1,828                  

Total other financial assets 507,047             118,064              

Total other assets 509,668             119,882              
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14. FINANCING LIABILITIES 

31 December 31 December

2025 2024

Accepted wakala deposits 1,744,428          1,761,698           

Murabaha financing 1,430,151            678,267             

3,174,579           2,439,965          
 

 

As of 31 December 2025, Sukuk investments of nominal value of QAR 1,591.6 million (2024: 697.4 million) of the 

Group have been pledged as security for bank financing liabilities of QAR 1,422.7 million of the Group. 

 

15. OTHER LIABILITIES 

31 December 31 December

Note 2025 2024

Other non-financial  liabilities

Advances and other payables 20,938               64,929               

Unearned  revenue 1,631                   1,063                  

Total other non-financial liabilities 22,569                65,992               

Other financial liabilities

Accounts payable 5,332                  8,050                 

Fair value of Sharia-compliant-risk-management instruments 26.2 4,904                -                         

Staff-related payables 48,024              41,433                

Dividends and Unsubscribed right issue shareholders claim payables 7,916                  8,079                 

Other payables and accrued expenses 13,243                40,795               

Total other financial liabilities 79,419                98,357               

Total other liabilities 101,988              164,349             
 

 

16. PARTICIPATORY INVESTMENT ACCOUNTS  

a) By type 

31 December 31 December

2025 2024

Term accounts 2,971,493           2,674,623          

Short-term Investment accounts 2,295                  23                      

Profit payable to participatory investments account holders 27,231                 18,781                

3,001,019          2,693,427          
 

b) By sector 

31 December 31 December

2025 2024

Individual 88,520               141,005              

Government -                          2,769                 

Corporate 2,912,499           2,549,653          

3,001,019          2,693,427          
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17. EQUITY 

(a) Share Capital 

31 December 31 December

2025 2024

Authorized

1,120,000,000 ordinary shares of QAR 1 each 1,120,000          2,500,000         

Issued and paid

1,120,000,000 ordinary shares of QAR 1 each 1,120,000          1,120,000           

 

(b) Legal reserve 

In accordance with the Bank’s Articles of Association, up to 10% of the net profit for the year may be transferred 

to other reserve each year until this reserve is equal to 50% of the paid-up share capital. The reserve is not available 

to distribution except in the circumstances stipulated in the Bank’s Articles of Association. During the year, the 

Bank has transferred an amount of QAR 20.0 million to the legal reserve (2024: QAR 12.8 million). 
 

(c) Proposed dividend 

The Board of Directors in its meeting held on 28 January 2026 proposed a cash dividend of 6% (2024: 5%) of the 

share capital amounting to QAR 67.2 million (2024: QAR 56 million). This proposal is subject to the approval of the 

shareholders’ annual general assembly. 
 

18. FEE INCOME 

 31 December  31 December 

2025 2024

Asset management fee 80,009              50,780               

Arrangement fee 31,231                 3,519                  

Performance fee 6,417                  -                         

Advisory fee 6,349                 6,395                 

Other fee 11                        -                         

124,017              60,694              

 For the year ended 

 
 

19. OTHER INCOME 

31 December 31 December

2025 2024

Rental income 13,445               27,152                

Miscellaneous income 30,571                4,670                 

44,016               31,822                

For the year ended
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20. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES 

31 December 31 December

2025 2024

Professional services 12,595                16,383                

Rent expense 646                    5                        

Other 38,213                34,933               

51,454                51,321                

 For the year ended 

 
 

21. BASIC / DILUTED PROFIT PER SHARE 

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the net profit attributable to the Banks’ shareholders and 

the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year. 

31 December 31 December

2025 2024

Basic and diluted profit per share 

Net Proft attributable to the equity holders of the Bank 200,111               128,165              

Total weighted average number of shares (thousand) 1,120,000          1,120,000           

Basic and diluted profit per share - QAR 0.179                 0.114                  

The weighted average number of ordinary shares in thousands have been calculated as follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the year 1,120,000          1,120,000           

For the year ended

 
 

22. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 

The Group had the following contingent liabilities at the year-end: 

31 December 31 December

2025 2024    

Unutilised credit facilities 7,622                  1,145                  

7,622                  1,145                  
 

Contingent liabilities related to Shari’a-compliant-risk-management instruments as disclosed in Note 26.2. 
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23. RELATED PARTIES 

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant 

influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions.  
 

Related parties include the significant owners and entities over which the Group and the owners exercise 

significant influence, directors and senior management personnel of the Group, close family members, entities 

owned or controlled by them, associates and affiliated companies.  
 

Balances and transactions in respect of related parties included in the consolidated financial statements are as 

follows: 

 Affiliates Other* Total

a) Consolidated statement of financial position as at

Financing assets -                   49,038          49,038        

Other assets -                   9,100             9,100           

Customers’  balances -                   43,250          43,250        

Liabilities held-for-sale 13,723          -                     13,723          

b)  Consolidated income statement for the year ended

Income from financing assets -                   1,661              1,661            

Provision for impairment on financing assets -                   3                    3                  

Other operating expenses -                   (1,789)            (1,789)          

c) Off balance sheet instruments as at 
Assets under management -                   290,041        290,041      

 Affiliates  Other* Total

Other assets -                   9,100             9,100           

Customers’  balances -                   30,719           30,719         

Liabilities held-for-sale 13,723          -                    13,723          

b)  Consolidated income statement for the year ended

Other operating expenses -                   (1,607)             (1,607)           

c) Off balance sheet instruments as at 

Asset under management -                   155,027         155,027       

31 December 2024

31 December 2025 

 a) Consolidated statement of financial position as at 

 
 

In 2024, the Bank acquired a real estate property in the State of Qatar (the “Qatar Real Estate Structure”) for QAR 

48 million from a related party through an SPE structure. As of 31st December 2024, the Bank had sold a 100% 

stake in this Structure to its investors. 

 

* Other related parties include affiliated parties of the board members and senior management. 
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23. RELATED PARTIES (Continued) 

Key management compensation is presented below: 

31 December 31 December

2025 2024

Key management personnel compensation :

Senior management personnel 9,447                 8,307                 

Shari’a Supervisory Board remuneration 500                    500                    

9,947                 8,807                 

For the year ended

 
 

Boards of Directors remuneration for the year ended 2025 is QAR 5 million (2024: QAR 3.1 million). 
 

24. ZAKAH 

Zakah is directly borne by the equity holders. The Group does not collect or pay Zakah on behalf of its equity 

holders in accordance with the Articles of Association. 
 

25. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED RISK MANAGEMENT 

25.1 Financial instruments definition and classification 

Financial instruments comprise all financial assets and liabilities of the Group. Financial assets include bank 

balances, investments carried at amortised cost, financing assets, accounts receivable, investments at fair value 

and other financial assets. Financial liabilities include customers’ balances, due to banks and other financial 

liabilities. Financial instruments also include contingent liabilities and commitments included in off-financial 

position items. 
 

Note 4 explains the accounting policies used to recognise and measure the significant financial instruments and 

their respective income and expenses items. 
 

25.2 Fair value of financial instruments 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 

between market participants at the measurement date. Fair value is determined for each investment individually 

in accordance with the valuation policies adopted by the Group as set out in 4.3. 
 

25.3 Risk management 

Lesha bank perceives strong risk management capabilities to be the foundation in delivering results to customers, 

investors and shareholders. Risk is an inherent part of the Group’s business activities.  
 

Our Board of Directors has overall responsibility for establishing our risk culture and ensuring that an effective 

risk management framework is in place.  
 

The risk management framework of the Bank encapsulates the spirit of the following key principles for Risk 

Management as articulated by Basel III:  
 

• Management oversight and control  

• Risk culture and ownership  

• Risk recognition and assessment  

• Control activities and segregation of duties  

• Information and communication 

• Monitoring Risk Management activities and correcting deficiencies. 
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25. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 

25.4 Risk framework and governance 

The Group’s risk management process is an integral part of the organization’s culture and is embedded into all its 

practices and processes. The Board of Directors (the Board), and a number of Board’s subcommittees including 

Executive Committee; and Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee; management committees; and executive 

management all contribute to the effective Group wide management of risk. 

 

The Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee is tasked with implementing risk management policies, guidelines and 

limits as well as ensuring that monitoring processes are in place. The Risk Management Department provides 

independent monitoring to both the Board and the Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee whilst also working closely 

with the business units which ultimately own and manage the risks. 

 

25.5 Investment risk 

Investment risks are identified and assessed via extensive due diligence activities conducted by the respective 

investment departments. The Group’s investments in venture capital are by definition in illiquid markets, frequently 

in emerging markets. Such investments cannot generally be hedged or liquidated easily. Consequently, the Group 

seeks to mitigate its risks via more direct means. Post-acquisition risk management for private equity investments is 

rigorously exercised, mainly via Board representation within the investee company, during the life of the private 

equity transaction. Periodic reviews of all investments are undertaken and presented to the Investment Committee 

for review. Concerns over risks and performance are addressed via the investment area responsible for managing 

the investment under the oversight of the Investment Committee. 

 

25.6 Credit risk 

Credit risk is the risk that the Group will incur a loss of principal or profit earned because its customers, clients or 

counterparties fail to discharge their contractual obligations. The Group manages and controls credit risk by setting 

limits on the amount of risk it is willing to accept for individual counterparties, related parties and for geographical 

and industry concentrations, and by monitoring exposures in relation to such limits. 

 

The table below shows the maximum exposure to credit risk for the relevant components of the financial position. 

 

31 December 31 December

Notes 2025 2024

Balances with banks 6 99,358               67,416                

Placements with financial institutions 6 2,919,008          3,026,345          

Investments in Sukuk 8 2,506,496          2,025,446          

Investment in funds 8 459,250             279,180              

Financing assets 7 589,886             522,417              

Other financial assets 13 507,047             118,064              

7,081,045          6,038,868         

 
 

The weightings assigned to each macro-economic scenario at the Bank level are based on the Credit cycle indices 

(CCI), and as of 31 December 2025 were 65% to the Base Case, 30% to Downside and 5% to the Upside Case (as of 

31 December 2024: 65% to the Base Case, 30% to Downside and 5% to the Upside Case). The situation is evolving 

and accordingly any upside or downside scenarios will be reassessed should the conditions significantly change. 
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25. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 

25.6.1 Concentration of risks 

 

As an active participant in the banking markets, the Group has a significant concentration of credit risk with other 

financial institutions. As at 31 December 2025, the Group had balances with 8 counterparty banks (31 December 2024: 

10 banks) with aggregated amounts above QAR 100 million. The total aggregate amount of these deposits was QAR 

2,929 million (2024: QAR 3,011 million). 

 

The analysis by geographical region of the Group’s financial assets having credit risk is as follows: 

31 December 31 December

2025 2024

Qatar 3,933,443         3,482,466          

Asia and Middle East 2,584,483          2,033,847          

North America 68,177                 54,486              

Europe and others 494,942            468,069            

7,081,045          6,038,868         

 
The distribution of financial assets having credit risk by industry sector is as follows: 

31 December 31 December

2025 2024

Banking and financial services 4,447,157           4,171,370            

Sovereign 761,750              496,455            

Real Estate 398,209             308,671              

Consumer Services 731,404             397,625             

Oil & Gas 181,151                172,657              

Aerospace & Defense 136,242              132,879              

Utilities 116,382              87,027                

Business Service 85,344               40,009              

Construction 111,129                126,273              

Others 112,277                105,902             

7,081,045          6,038,868         

 
 

25.6.2 Credit Quality  

 

The credit quality of financial assets is managed by Group using internal and external credit risk ratings. The Group 

follows an internal rating mechanism for grading relationship across its credit portfolio. 

 

The Group utilises a scale ranging from 1 to 10 for credit relationship with 1 to 7 denoting performing grades, 8, 9 

and 10 denoting non-performing. All credits are assigned a rating in accordance with defined criteria. 

 

The Group endeavors continuously to improve upon internal credit risk rating methodologies and credit risk 

management policies and practices to reflect the true underlying credit risk of the portfolio and the credit culture 

in the Group. All financing relationships are reviewed at least once in a year and more frequently in case of non-

performing assets. 
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25. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 

The following table provides the details for the credit quality: 

 

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Cash and bank balances

Performing (AAA to B-) 3,014,756        -                      3,640             3,018,396         3,090,151      -                     3,640            3,093,791      

Allowance for impairment (194)                 -                      (3,640)            (3,834)              (291)               -                     (3,640)           (3,931)            

Net carrying  amount 3,014,562        -                      -                      3,014,562         3,089,860     -                     -                     3,089,860     

Performing (AAA to CCC) 18,867              -                      -                      18,867               42,821           -                     -                     42,821           

Allowance for impairment (1,126)               -                      -                      (1,126)                (1,094)           -                     -                     (1,094)           

Net carrying  amount 17,741               -                      -                      17,741                41,727            -                     -                     41,727            

Performing (AAA to CCC) 2,487,629        -                      -                      2,487,629         1,982,625      -                     -                     1,982,625      

Allowance for impairment (9,550)              -                      -                      (9,550)               (8,060)           -                     -                     (8,060)           

Net carrying  amount 2,478,079        -                      -                      2,478,079         1,974,565      -                     -                     1,974,565      

Financing assets

Performing (Grades 1-6) 145,417            -                      -                      145,417             144,759         -                     -                     144,759         

Under-performing (Grade 7) -                       109,402         -                      109,402           -                     65,211            -                     65,211            

Non-performing (Grade 8-10) -                       -                      335,067          335,067            -                     -                     312,447         312,447         

145,417            109,402         335,067          589,886           144,759         65,211            312,447         522,417         

Allowance for impairment (47)                   (60,648)          (319,054)         (379,749)           (796)              (39,075)         (307,168)        (347,039)       

Net carrying  amount 145,370           48,754            16,013             210,137             143,963         26,136           5,279             175,378          

Financing commitments and financial guarantee

Performing (Grades 1-6) 7,622                -                      -                      7,622                 1,145              -                     -                     1,145              

7,622                -                      -                      7,622                 1,145              -                     -                     1,145              

Allowance for impairment -                       -                      -                      -                        -                     -                     -                     -                     

 31 December 2025  31 December 2024 

Investments carried at amortised cost

Investments carried at fair value
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25. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 

Collateral 

The Group obtains collateral and other credit enhancements in ordinary course of business from counterparties. On 

an overall basis, during the year there was no discernable deterioration in the quality of collateral held by the Group. 

In addition, there were no changes in collateral policies of the Group. 

 

The fair value of the collateral held against credit-impaired financing assets as at 31 December 2025 is QAR 27.2 

million (2024: QAR 27.2 million). 

 

Renegotiated financing assets  

Restructuring activities include extended payment arrangements, approved external management plans, and 

modification and deferral of payments. Restructuring policies and practices are based on indicators or criteria that, 

in the judgment of management, indicate that payment will most likely continue. These policies are kept under 

continuous review. Renegotiated financing assets as at 31 December 2025 amounted to QAR 35 million (2024: QAR 

32 million). 

 

25.6.3 Repossessed collateral 

 

Repossessed properties are sold as soon as practicable, with the proceeds used to reduce the outstanding 

indebtedness. There were no repossessed properties as at 31 December 2025 and 31 December 2024. 

 

25.6.4 Write-off policy 

 

The Group writes off a financing asset or an investment in debt-type security balance, and any related allowances for 

impairment losses, when Group determines that the financing asset or security is uncollectible. 

 

This determination is made after considering information such as the occurrence of significant changes in the 

financed counterparty’s / issuer’s financial position such that the financed counterparty/ issuer can no longer pay 

the obligation, or that proceeds from collateral will not be sufficient to pay back the entire exposure. For smaller 

balance standardised financing assets, write-off decisions generally are based on a product-specific past due status. 

 

25.6.5 Inputs, assumptions and techniques used for estimating impairment 

 

Significant increase in credit risk (SICR) 

 

When determining whether the risk of default on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial 

recognition, the Group considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without 

undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis including internal credit 

risk grading system, external risk ratings, where available, delinquency status of accounts, credit judgement and, 

where possible, relevant historical experience. The Group may also determine that an exposure has undergone a 

significant increase in credit risk based on particular qualitative indicators that it considers are indicative of such and 

whose effect may not otherwise be fully reflected in its quantitative analysis on a timely basis. 
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25. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 

In determining whether credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition following criteria are 

considered: 

 

• Two notches downgrade for rating from 1 to 4 or one notch downgrade for ratings from 5 and 6 

• Facilities rescheduled during previous twelve months 

• Facilities overdue by more than 30 days as at the reporting date, unless rebutted based on other 

qualitative supportable information  

• Any other reason as per management discretion that evidence a significant increase in credit risk 

 

Credit risk grades 

 

Credit risk grades are defined using qualitative and quantitative factors that are indicative of risk of default. These 

factors vary depending on the nature of the exposure and the type of financed counterparty. Exposures are subject 

to on-going monitoring, which may result in an exposure being moved to a different credit risk grade. 

 

Generating the term structure of Probability of Default (PD) 

 

The Group employs statistical models to analyse the data collected and generate estimates of PD of exposures and 

how these are expected to change as a result of the passage of time. This analysis includes the identification and 

calibration of relationships between changes in default rates and changes in key macro-economic factors, across 

various geographies in which the Group has exposures. 

 

Renegotiated financial assets 

 

The contractual terms of a financing may be modified for a number of reasons, including changing market conditions, 

customer retention and other factors not related to a current or potential credit deterioration of the customer. An 

existing financing whose terms have been modified may be derecognised and the renegotiated financing recognised 

as a new financing at fair value. Where possible, the Group seeks to restructure financing rather than to take 

possession of collateral, if available. This may involve extending the payment arrangements and documenting the 

agreement of new financing conditions. Management continuously reviews renegotiated financing to ensure that all 

criteria are met and that future payments are likely to occur. 

 

The accounts which are restructured due to credit reasons in past 12 months will be classified under Stage 2. 

 

Definition of default 

 

The Group considers a financial asset to be in default when: 

• the financed counterparty is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full, without recourse 

by the Group to actions such as realising security (if any is held); or 

• the financed counterparty is past due more than 90 days on any material credit obligation to the Group, 

unless rebutted based on other qualitative supportable information. 

• rated internally as 8, 9 or 10 corresponding to the Qatar Financial Centre Regulatory Authority (QFCRA) 

categories of substandard, doubtful and loss, respectively. 
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25. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 

In assessing whether a financed counterparty is in default, the Group considers indicators that are: 

• quantitative – e.g. overdue status and non-payment on another obligation of the same issuer to the 

Group; and 

• based on data developed internally and obtained from external sources. 

 

Inputs into the assessment of whether a financial instrument is in default and their significance may vary over time 

to reflect changes in circumstances. The definition of default largely aligns with that applied by the Group for 

regulatory capital purposes. 

 

Incorporation of forward-looking information 

 

Incorporating forward-looking information increases the level of judgement as to how changes in these 

macroeconomic factors will affect the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) applicable to the stage 1 and stage 2 exposures 

which are considered as performing. The methodologies and assumptions involved, including any forecasts of future 

economic conditions, are reviewed periodically. 

 

Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models 

 

The assessment of SICR and the calculation of ECL both incorporate forward-looking information. The Group has 

performed historical analysis and identified the key economic variables affecting credit risk and expected credit 

losses for each portfolio. 

 

These economic variables and their associated impact on the PD, EAD and LGD vary by financial instrument. Expert 

judgment has also been applied in this process. Forecasts of these economic variables (the “base economic 

scenario”) are updated from the World economic outlook: IMF country data and other reliable sources which provide 

the best estimate view of the economy over the next five years.  

 

Economic variable assumptions 

 

The most significant period-end assumption used for the ECL estimate as at 31 December 2025 was GDP growth 

(2026: 6.1%, 2027: 7.8%). 

 

Measurement of ECL 

 

The key inputs into the measurement of ECL are the term structure of the following variables: 

• probability of default (PD); 

• loss given default (LGD); 

• exposure at default (EAD). 

 

These parameters are generally derived from internally developed statistical models and other historical data. They 

are adjusted to reflect forward-looking information as described above. 
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25. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 

PD estimates are estimates at a certain date, which are calculated based on statistical rating models These statistical 

models are based on internally compiled data comprising both quantitative and qualitative factors and are 

supplemented by external PD data where available. 

 

LGD is the magnitude of the likely loss if there is a default. The Group estimates LGD parameters based on the history 

of recovery rates of claims against defaulted counterparties. The LGD models consider the forecasted collateral value 

and the Group assumes that haircut percentage applied to Collateral value as per QFCRA.  

 

LGD estimation includes: 

 

• Recovery Rate: Defined as the ratio of liquidation value to market value of the underlying collateral at the 

time of default. It would also account for expected recovery rate from a general claim on the individual’s 

assets for the unsecured portion of the exposure. 

• Discounting Rate: Defined as the opportunity cost of the recovery value not being realized on the day of 

default adjusted for time value. 

 

EAD represents the expected exposure in the event of a default. The Group derives the EAD from the current 

exposure to the counterparty and potential changes to the current amount allowed under the contract including 

amortisation. The EAD of a financial asset is its gross carrying amount. 

 

For lending commitments and financial guarantees, the EAD includes the amount drawn, as well as potential future 

amounts that may be drawn under the contract, which are estimated based on historical observations and forward-

looking forecasts. 

 

Loss allowance 

 

The following tables show reconciliations from the opening to the closing balance of the loss allowance by class of 

financial instruments. Comparative amounts represent allowance account for credit losses and reflect measurement 

basis under relevant FAS. 
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25. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 

 

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Cash and bank balances

Balance at 1 January 291                   -                      3,640             3,931                731                 -                     3,640            4,371              

Impairment allowance, net (97)                   -                      -                      (97)                    (440)              -                     -                     (440)              

Balance at end of the year 194                  -                      3,640             3,834               291                -                     3,640            3,931             

Balance at 1 January 1,094               -                      -                      1,094                1,288             -                     -                     1,288             

Impairment allowance, net 32                    -                      -                      32                     (194)              -                     -                     (194)              

Balance at end of the year 1,126                -                      -                      1,126                 1,094             -                     -                     1,094             

Investments carried at fair value through other comprehensive income

Balance at 1 January 8,060              -                      -                      8,060               9,561             -                     -                     9,561             

Impairment allowance, net 1,490               -                      -                      1,490                (1,501)            -                     -                     (1,501)            

Balance at end of the year 9,550               -                      -                      9,550                8,060            -                     -                     8,060            

Financing assets

Balance at 1 January 796                  39,075            307,168          347,039           6,414             30,885          301,512          338,811          

Transfers from other provisions -                       36,764            -                      36,764              -                     -                     -                     -                     

Transfers to  Stage 3 -                       (16,545)           16,545             -                        -                     -                     -                     -                     

Write-off of provision -                       -                      (3,284)             (3,284)              -                     -                     -                     -                     

Foreign currency fluctuation,(net) -                       -                      -                      -                        -                     (25)                -                     (25)                

Impairment allowance, net (749)                 1,354              (1,375)              (770)                  (5,618)           8,215             5,656            8,253             

Balance at end of the year 47                    60,648           319,054          379,749            796                39,075           307,168         347,039         

Investments carried at amortised cost

 31 December 2025  31 December 2024 
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25. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 

25.7 Liquidity risk and funding management 

 

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Group will not have sufficient funds available to meet its financial liabilities 

as they fall due. The Group’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure that it will always have sufficient liquidity to 

meet its liabilities when due under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or 

risking damage to the Group’s reputation. 

 

The Treasury department collects information regarding the liquidity profile of the Bank’s financial assets and 

liabilities and details of other projected cash flows arising from projected future business. The Treasury Department 

then maintains a portfolio of short-term liquid assets to ensure that sufficient liquidity is maintained within the Bank 

as a whole. 

 

All liquidity policies and procedures are subject to review and approval by Assets-Liabilities Management Committee 

(ALCO) which also regularly receives reports relating to the Bank’s liquidity position. 

 

Below table summarises undiscounted cash outflows of financial liabilities: 

 

31 December 31 December

2025 2024

On demand 295,750              189,210              

Less than 3 months 2,888,364          1,768,543           

3 to 6 months 1,147,629            193,642             

6 to 12 months 2,428,285          2,070,408          

1 to 5 years 79,419                1,405,641           

Total 6,839,447          5,627,444          
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25. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 

The table below shows an analysis of financial assets and liabilities according to when they are expected to be recovered or settled. 

At 31 December 2025

 On demand  Less than 3 

months 

 3 to 6 

months 

 6 to 12 

months 

 1 to 5 years  Total 

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 95,748           1,369,486          366,143           914,306          268,879           3,014,562           

Investments in Sukuk -                     177,506               101,650           80,756             2,135,908        2,495,820          

Financing assets -                     -                          3,568               42,380            164,189           210,137               

Investment in fund -                     -                          -                       -                       459,250          459,250             

Equity investments -                     -                          -                       -                       1,237,529         1,237,529            

Other financial assets 507,047         -                          -                       -                       -                       507,047             

Total financial assets 602,795         1,546,992           471,361            1,037,442        4,265,755        7,924,345          

 Financial liabilities and participatory investment

  account holders 

Financing liabilities -                     1,937,385           -                       1,237,194         -                       3,174,579            

Customers’ balances 293,357         -                          -                       -                       -                       293,357              

Other financial liabilities -                     -                          -                       -                       79,419             79,419                

Participatory investments account holders 2,293             812,220              1,099,577         1,086,929        -                       3,001,019           

Financial liabiliites held-for-sale -                     13,723                 -                       -                       -                       13,723                 

 Total financial  liabilities and participatory 

  investment account holders 295,650         2,763,328           1,099,577         2,324,123        79,419             6,562,097           

Net liquidity gap 307,145         (1,216,336)          (628,216)          (1,286,681)        4,186,336        1,362,248           

Net cumulative gap 307,145         (909,191)             (1,537,407)       (2,824,088)      1,362,248        

Contingent liabilities* -                     -                          7,622                -                       -                       7,622                  

 
*Contingent liabilities related to Shari’a-compliant-risk-management instruments as disclosed in Note 26. 
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25. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 

At 31 December 2024

 On demand  Less than 3 

months 

 3 to 6 

months 

 6 to 12 

months 

 1 to 5 years  Total 

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 63,763           1,884,421           1,104,420        37,256             -                       3,089,860          

Investments in Sukuk                       - 223,647              28,389            117,817             1,646,439        2,016,292           

Financing assets                       - 3,993                 26,239             6,456              138,690           175,378              

Investment in fund                       - -                         -                       -                       279,180           279,180              

Equity investments -                     -                         -                       -                       759,305          759,305             

Other financial assets 118,064         -                         -                       -                       -                       118,064              
Total financial assets 181,827          2,112,061            1,159,048        161,529           2,823,614        6,438,079          

 Financial liabilities and participatory investment

  account holders 

Financing liabilities -                     1,076,331            116,939           -                       1,246,695        2,439,965          

Customers’ balances 186,904         -                         -                       -                       -                       186,904             

Other financial liabilities -                     -                         -                       -                       98,357             98,357               

Participatory investments account holders 2,229             607,023             68,994            2,015,181         -                       2,693,427           

Financial liabiliites of disposal groups classified as held-for-sale -                     13,723                 -                       -                       -                       13,723                 

 Total financial  liabilities and participatory 

  investment account holders 189,133          1,697,077            185,933           2,015,181         1,345,052        5,432,376           

Net liquidity gap (7,306)            414,984             973,115            (1,853,652)      1,478,562        1,005,703           

Net cumulative gap (7,306)            407,678             1,380,793        (472,859)         1,005,703        

Contingent liabilities* -                     -                         1,145                -                       -                       1,145                  
 

*Contingent liabilities related to Shari’a-compliant-risk-management instruments as disclosed in Note 26. 
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25. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 

25.8 Market risk 

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate due to adverse 

changes in market variables such as profit rates, foreign exchange rates, equity prices and commodities. The Group 

classifies exposures to market risk into either listed or non- listed corporate investments. 

 

25.8.1 Profit rate risk 

Profit rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in profit rates will affect future cash flows or the fair values 

of the financial instruments. The Group’s current exposure to profit rate risk is limited to the following: 

 

• The Group’s placement with the financial institutions (classified as ‘Placements with financial institutions’); 

• The Group’s investment portfolio of Sukuk (classified as “Investments at amortised cost” and “Investments 

at fair value through equity”); 

• The Group’s investments in Murabaha (classified as “Financing assets”); and 

• Financing received by the Group from financial institutions (classified as “Financing liabilities”). 

 

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a 100 basis point (bp) change in profit rates, with all other 

variables held constant. The effect of decreases in profit rate is expected to be equal and opposite to the effect of 

the increases shown. 

 

31 December  

 2025

 Change in basis 

points (+/-) 

 Effect on net 

profit/ loss  (+/-) 

Assets

Placements with financial institutions 2,919,008       100                        29,190                  

Investments in sukuk 2,506,496      100                        25,065                  

Investment in funds carried at fair value 459,250          100                        4,593                    

Financing assets 210,137           100                        2,101                     

Liabilities and Equity of unrestricted investment account holders

Financing liabilities 3,174,579        100                        (31,746)                 

Participatory investment accounts 3,001,019       100                        (30,010)                

31 December  

2024

 Change in basis 

points (+/-) 

 Effect on net 

profit/ loss  (+/-) 

Assets

Placements with financial institutions 3,026,345       100                        30,263                  

Investments in sukuk 2,025,446      100                        20,254                 

Investment in funds carried at fair value 279,180          100                        2,792                    

Financing assets 175,378           100                        1,754                    

Liabilities and Equity of unrestricted investment account holders

Financing liabilities 2,439,965      100                        (24,400)                

Participatory investment accounts 2,693,427       100                        (26,934)                
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25. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 

25.8.2 Foreign exchange risk 

Foreign exchange risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to adverse changes in 

foreign exchange rates. The Board has set limits on positions by currency. Positions are monitored regularly to 

ensure that positions are maintained within established limits. 

 

The table below indicates the currencies that are pegged to the Qatari Riyal and, hence the foreign exchange risk for 

the Group in respect of these currencies is minimal. 

31 December 31 December

Currency 2025 2024

USD 1,131,179             1,862,631           

USD pegged currencies 34,668               12,267                

Exposure (QAR equivalent)

 
 

The table below shows the impact of a 5% movement in the currency rate, for other than those pegged to the Qatari 

Riyal, against the Qatari Riyal, with all other variables held constant on the consolidated income statement and the 

consolidated statement of changes in Owners’ equity. The effect of decreases in the currency rates is expected to 

be equal and opposite to the effect of the increases shown. 

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

Currency 2025 2024 2025 2024

GBP 13,249              (17,301)            662                         (865)               

EUR 5,313                 1,618               266                         81                    

KWD 32                     32                    2                             2                      

 Exposure (QAR equivalent)  Effect on net profit (+/-) 

 
 

25.8.3 Commodities price risk 

The Group does not currently have commodities portfolios; hence it has no exposure to commodity price risks. 

 

25.9 Operational risk 

Operational risk is the risk of loss arising from systems and control failures, fraud and human errors, which can result 

in financial and reputation loss, and legal and regulatory consequences. The Group manages operational risk through 

appropriate controls, instituting segregation of duties and internal checks and balances, including internal audit and 

compliance. The Risk Management Department facilitates the management of operational risk by way of assisting in 

the identification of, monitoring and managing of operational risk in the Bank.  

 

25.10 Concentration risk 

Concentrations arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities, or activities in the 

same geographic region, or have similar economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual 

obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions. Concentrations indicate 

the relative sensitivity of the Group’s performance to developments affecting a particular industry or geographical 

location or individual obligor. 
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25. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 

25.11 Capital management 

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to ensure that the Group complies with regulatory 

capital requirements and that the Group maintains healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and to 

maximise Owners’ value. 
 

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions 

and the risk characteristics of its activities. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust 

the amount of dividend payment to Owners, return capital to Owners or issue new capital. The QFCRA sets and 

monitors capital requirements for the Group as a whole. In implementing current capital requirements, the QFCRA 

requires the Group to maintain a minimum capital adequacy ratio as prescribed by the Islamic Banking Business 

Prudential Rules of 2015. 
 

The Group’s capital resources are divided into two tiers: 
 

• Tier 1 capital, which includes ordinary share capital, share premium, retained earnings and non-controlling 

interest after deductions for goodwill and intangible assets, and other regulatory adjustments relating to 

items that are included in equity but are treated differently for capital adequacy purposes. 

• Tier 2 capital, which includes the fair value reserve relating to unrealised gains on equity instruments 

classified as investments at fair value through equity and currency translation reserve. 
 

Other deductions from capital include the carrying amounts of investments in subsidiaries that are not included in 

the regulatory consolidation, investments in the capital of banks and certain other regulatory items. Risk-weighted 

assets are determined according to specified requirements that seek to reflect the varying levels of risk attached to 

assets and off- financial position exposures. 

 

The Group’s policy is at all times to meet or exceed the capital requirements determined by the QFCRA. There have 

been no material changes in the Group’s management of capital during the year. 

 

The Group’s capital adequacy ratio (the “CAR”), calculated in accordance with the capital adequacy guidelines issued 

by the QFCRA, is as follows: 

31 December 31 December

2025 2024

Total risk weighted assets 10,118,796          7,403,235          

Share capital 1,120,000          1,120,000           

Share premium 80,003              80,003               

Legal reserve 42,267                22,256               

Retained earnings 264,627             142,735              

Non-controlling interest (8,413)                (18,200)              

Intangible assets (3,570)                (17,619)               

Other adjustments (32,189)               (58,682)             

Total qualifying capital and reserve funds 1,462,725           1,270,493           

 Total capital resources expressed as a percentage of total

 risk weighted assets 
14.46% 17.16%

 
The Bank is subject to a minimum regulatory CAR of 12.5% comprising of Tier 1 and Tier 2 Capital Ratio of 8%, 

capital conservation buffer of 2.5% and an ICAAP buffer of 2.0%. 
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26. SHARI’A-COMPLIANT-RISK-MANAGEMENT INSTRUMENTS 

26.1 Profit rate swap 

Swaps are commitments to exchange one set of cash flows for another. In the case of profit rate swaps, 

counterparties generally exchange fixed and floating profit payments in a single currency without exchanging 

principal.  

 

26.2 Unilateral promise to buy/sell currencies 

Unilateral promises to buy/sell currencies are promises to either buy or sell a specified currency at a specific price 

and date in the future. The actual transactions are executed on the promise execution dates, by exchanging the 

purchase/sale offers and acceptances between the relevant parties. The table below shows the positive and 

negative fair values of Shari’a-compliant-risk-management financial instruments together with the notional 

amounts analysed by the term to maturity. The notional amounts, which provide an indication of the volumes of 

the transactions outstanding at the year-end, do not necessarily reflect the amounts of future cash flows involved 

and the credit and market risk, which can be identified from the derivatives fair value. 

 

31 December 2025

 Positive 

fair value 

 Negative 

fair value 

 Notional

amount 

 Less than 3 

months 

 3 to 12 

months 

Unilateral promise to buy/ sell currencies 2,765           (4,904)           1,977,937     1,222,148      755,789          

2,765           (4,904)           1,977,937     1,222,148      755,789          

31 December 2024

 Positive 

fair value 

 Negative 

fair value 

 Notional

amount 

 Less than 3 

months 

 3 to 12 

months 

Unilateral promise to buy/ sell currencies 9,124          -                     1,235,425    1,195,450     39,975           

9,124          -                     1,235,425    1,195,450     39,975           
 

 

Unrealised fair value gain/loss arising from Shari’a-compliant-risk management instruments were recognized in 

these consolidation financial statements as required by IFRS; however, as per requirement of Shari’a principles 

gains/losses are realised when actual transactions / settlements happen. 
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27. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

The Group's financial instruments are accounted for under the historical cost method with the exception of 

investments at fair value. By contrast, the fair value represents the price that would be received to sell an asset, 

or paid to transfer a liability, in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. 

Differences therefore can arise between book values under the historical cost method and fair value estimates. 

Underlying the definition of fair value is the presumption that the Group is a going concern without any intention 

or requirement to curtail materially the scale of its operation or to undertake a transaction on adverse terms. 

Generally accepted methods of determining fair value include reference to quoted prices and the use of valuation 

techniques such as discounted cash flow analysis. 
 

Fair value hierarchy 
 

Fair value measurements are analysed by level in the fair value hierarchy as follows:  

(i) level one are measurements at quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or 

liabilities,  
 

(ii) level two measurements are valuations techniques with all material inputs observable for the asset or 

liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices), and 
 

(iii) level three measurements are valuations not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable 

inputs). Management applies judgment in categorising financial instruments using the fair value 

hierarchy. If a fair value measurement uses observable inputs that require significant adjustment, that 

measurement is a Level 3 measurement. 

 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
31 December 2025

Investments carried at fair value

- at fair value through equity 2,490,848       -                        77,567               2,568,415         

- at fair value through income statement -                        -                        1,147,193          1,147,193          

Investments in real estate carried at fair value -                        -                        157,056            157,056            

Investments in funds carried at fair value 67,421              64,787              327,042           459,250           

 Net gains and losses included in the consolidated 

  statement of changes in equity 36,325             -                        2,146                38,471              

 Net gains and losses included in the consolidated 

  income statement 2,056               -                        73,408             75,464             

31 December 2024

Investments carried at fair value

- at fair value through equity 2,026,473        -                       79,973              2,106,446        

- at fair value through income statement -                       -                       627,424           627,424           

Investments in real estate carried at fair value -                       -                       270,024           270,024           

Investments in funds carried at fair value 80,153             -                       199,027            279,180            

 Net gains and losses included in the consolidated 

  statement of changes in equity (5,638)             -                       (13,894)            (19,532)            

 Net gains and losses included in the consolidated 

  income statement 4,587               -                       (23,827)            (19,240)            
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27. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 

Shari’a-compliant-risk-management instruments related assets and liabilities, as disclosed in Note 26, belong to 

level 2 fair value hierarchy. 

 

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities carried at amortised cost are equal to the carrying value, 

hence, not included in the fair value hierarchy table, except for investments carried at amortised cost for which 

the fair value amounts to QAR 19.1 million (31 December 2024: QAR 43d.3 million) and is derived using Level 1 fair 

value hierarchy. 

 

Valuation technique used in the fair value measurement at 31 December 2025 and 2024 for level 3 investments included 

Discounted Cash flow and Market approach. The below table summarises the inputs used discounted cash flow 

technique: 

Inputs used 2025 2024

Growth rate 2.5% to 3% 3% to 4%

Discount rate 8.5% to 10.7% 10.45% to 11.31%

Range of inputs

 Investments at fair value through

   income statement 
 Discounted 

cash flows  

 Valuation 

technique 

 
 

Movements in level 3 financial instruments 

The following table shows the reconciliation of the opening and closing amount of Level 3 investments which are 

recorded at fair value: 

 At 1 January 

2025 

 Total gain / (losses) 

recorded in 

consolidated income 

statement /equity 

 Additions / 

Transfer from 

assets

 held-for-sale, net Disposals

 At 31 

December 

2025 

Investments carried 

- at fair value through equity 79,973           2,146                             -                              (4,552)          77,567            

- at fair value through income statement 826,451         84,420                          1,635,956               (1,072,592)    1,474,235       

906,424       86,566                           1,635,956               (1,077,144)    1,551,802       

 At 1 January 

2024 

 Total gain / (losses) 

recorded in 

consolidated income 

statement /equity  Additions  Disposals 

 At 31 

December 

2024  

Investments carried 

- at fair value through equity 79,385          (4,511)                            5,099                     -                   79,973           

- at fair value through income statement 616,324        (27,625)                         372,607                  (134,855)     826,451         

695,709        (32,136)                          377,706                  (134,855)     906,424        
 

 

Transfers between level 1, level 2 and level 3 

There were no transfers between the levels during the year ended 31 December 2025 (2024: none). 
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28. SEGMENT INFORMATION 

For management purposes, the Group has four broad reportable segments, as described below. The reportable 

segments offer different products and services and are managed separately based on the Group’s management 

and internal reporting structure. For each of the reportable segments, the management reviews internal reports 

periodically. The following summary describes the operations in each of the Group’s reportable segments: 

 

Alternative Investments 

The Group’s Alternative Investments segment focuses on originating, structuring, and managing investments 

across the aviation, private equity, and real estate sectors. This segment is responsible for acquiring significant or 

controlling stakes in well-managed businesses and asset platforms, where there is clear potential for value 

creation and long-term growth. In private equity, the Group targets investments in growth oriented private 

companies, often acquired at valuations below intrinsic or anticipated value, and works closely with management 

teams to enhance operational and financial performance. The aviation platform focuses on asset-backed 

investments with strong counterparties and stable cash flow characteristics. The real estate strategy is centered 

on income-generating commercial properties, including investments through senior loans, mezzanine financing, 

construction loans and participating debt structures. Investment opportunities are primarily pursued across the 

in GCC and MENA regions, with additional exposure to the developed market, while remaining opportunistic toward 

compelling opportunities outside these core markets. 

 

Asset Management 

The Group’s Asset Management segment is responsible for the management of proprietary and client assets 

within public equities. The public equities platform focuses on Shari’a-compliant listed equity investments, 

applying disciplined fundamental analysis and active portfolio management to identify value and growth 

opportunities across target markets. Investment strategies are designed to deliver long-term capital appreciation 

through selective exposure to listed equities, supported by robust risk management and governance frameworks. 

 

Treasury 

The Treasury Department acts as a central function of the Bank and is responsible for the implementation of 

balance sheet, liquidity, and funding strategies in line with the Group’s overall strategic objectives. Treasury 

focuses on supporting the Bank’s organic liquidity growth, optimizing funding costs, and enhancing asset yields 

through disciplined asset and liability management (“ALM”) practices. The function manages liquidity deployment, 

funding activities, and foreign exchange products, while maintaining relationships with local and international 

financial institutions. Treasury also supports product development initiatives, including Shari’a-compliant treasury 

and investment solutions for corporate, institutional, and government-related clients. In addition, the Bank 

participates selectively in sukuk and other Shari’a-compliant capital market instruments to support income 

generation and liquidity management. All treasury-related activities and residual assets not directly attributable 

to other reportable segments are managed centrally within this function. 

 

Investment Banking Advisory 

The Group’s Investment Banking Advisory segment provides financial advisory services to government-related 

entities, corporates, financial institutions, diversified groups, and family offices. The segment offers advisory 

capabilities across mergers and acquisitions, debt advisory and capital markets, equity capital markets, and 

restructuring, supporting strategic transactions and capital structure optimization. Services are delivered to both 

private and listed entities across the GCC, MENA region, and selected international markets. 
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28. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 

Unallocated  

Certain income, expenses, assets, and liabilities are not allocated to the Group’s reportable operating segments, 

as they relate to proprietary activities, central treasury functions, and other shared or residual activities managed 

on a Group-wide basis. These items are centrally controlled and are not directly attributable to, nor independently 

managed by, individual operating segments. Management considers that allocating such amounts to reportable 

segments would not reflect the underlying operating performance of those segments. Accordingly, these items 

are presented separately to maintain consistency with internal management reporting and to enhance the 

comparability and transparency of segment information. 

 

Information regarding the results, assets and liabilities of each reportable segment is included below. 

Performance is measured based on segment profit before tax, as included in the internal management reports 

that are reviewed by the management.  

 

Below is the information about operating segments: 

 

For the year ended 31 December 2025
 Alternative 

Investments 

 Asset 

Managemen  Treasury 

 Investment 

Banking Advisory Unallocated Total

Segment Income 250,196         4,770             175,900         6,349                    29,406          466,621         

Segment Expenses -                     -                     -                     -                             (153,753)         (153,753)         

Net profit attributable to quasi-equity -                     -                     (101,132)         -                             -                     (101,132)         

Impairment allowance (10,242)          -                     (1,425)             -                             -                     (11,667)           

Segment result 239,954         4,770             73,343           6,349                    (124,347)        200,069        

Segment assets 2,379,364      83,420          5,602,323      1,368                     30,038          8,096,513      

Segment liabilities 18,892            -                     3,470,075      -                             94,680          3,583,647      

 Quasi equity -                     -                     3,001,019      -                             -                     3,001,019      

 
 

For the year ended 31 December 2024
 Alternative 

Investments 

 Asset 

Management  Treasury 

 Investment 

Banking Advisory Unallocated Total

Segment Income 189,413          672                 189,782         455                       4,316             384,638        

Segment Expenses -                     -                      -                     -                            (134,028)        (134,028)        

Net profit attributable to quasi-equity -                     -                      (114,025)        -                            -                     (114,025)        

Impairment allowance (19,353)          -                      2,135              -                            -                     (17,218)           

Segment result 170,060         672                 77,892           455                       (129,712)         119,367          

Segment assets 1,509,189      51,908            5,200,585     -                            60,711            6,822,393      

Segment liabilities 13,723            -                      2,626,869     -                            164,349         2,804,941      

 Quasi equity -                     -                      2,693,427      -                            -                     2,693,427      

 
 

29. COMPARATIVE INFORMATION 

Certain accounts in the previous year consolidation financial statements have been reclassified to conform with 

the current year’s financial statement presentation. Such reclassifications, however, did not have any effect in the 

reported profit and equity in the previous year. 
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